
Board of Trustees 

Meeting

Tu e s d ay, J u l y 2 5, 20 2 3  /  5  P M

Administrat ion Bui ld ing 
2111  Snow Road, Parma, OH 44134



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 

25 July 2023 
Administration Building Auditorium 

5:00 p.m. 
 
 

TOPIC PAGE# MOTION 

1. Call to Order: Dean DePiero, President  ROLL-CALL 

2. Approval of Minutes: June 27, 2023 Board Meeting 1-9 ACTION 

3. Retiree Recognition 10-11 INFORMATION 

4. Public Comment  INFORMATION 

5. Report of the Board President  INFORMATION 

6. Report of the Executive Director 
-Learning Moment  

 Pamela Jankowski, Chief Public Services Officer   
 Alex Ward, BSL Supervisor, Children, Brooklyn 

Branch 
o CCPL Brooklyn Childrens Space 

 

13-25 INFORMATION 

7. Human Resources Report 27-33 ACTION 

8. Finance Committee Report: 
 Financial Statement Review – Fiscal 2023 – June 
 Investments: Fiscal 2023 – June 
 Purchase Approval List 
 Gift Report 

35-36 
37-41 
42-43 
44-46 
47 

 
INFORMATION 
ROLL-CALL 
ACTION 
ACTION 

9. New Business 
 Resolution to Negotiate an Agreement in Connection with the 

New Construction of the New  Beachwood Branch Library 
 Resolution Seeking Permission to Advertise for a Request For 

Qualifications for Construction Management at Risk Services 
for the New Library Branch in The City of Beachwood 

 Resolution Authorizing the Library to Accept Guaranteed 
Maximum Pricing and Construction Manager At Risk Fees 
Relating to the New Construction of The Branch Library 
Located in The City of Brooklyn 

 Resolution Authorizing The Library to Enter into an Agreement 
with Infinity Construction Company for Construction 
Management At Risk Services Relating to the Renovation and 
Addition of The Solon Branch 

 Resolution Authorizing the Library to Enter into an Agreement 
with Seitz Builders, Inc., Regarding The Brecksville Drive-Up 
Window Project 

 Resolution to Approve Change Order Number One for Apex 
Construction for Fairview Innovation Center Project 

 Resolution to Approve Change Order Number One for Sterling 
Professional Group for the North Olmsted Teen Expansion 
Project 

 Resolution Authorizing The Library to enter into an Agreement 
with Bialosky Cleveland for Design Services in Connection 
with Construction of The New Parma Heights Branch Library 

 Resolution Seeking Permission to Advertise for a Request For 
Qualifications for Construction Management At Risk Services 
for The New Library Branch in The City of Parma Heights 

 
49-50 
 
51-52 
 
 
53-95 
 
 
 
96-132 
 
 
 
133-134 
 
 
135 
 
136 
 
 
137-171 
 
 
172-173 

 
ACTION 
 
ACTION 
 
 
ACTION 
 
 
 
ACTION 
 
 
 
ACTION 
 
 
ACTION 
 
ACTION 
 
 
ACTION 
 
 
ACTION 
 

10. Adjourn  ACTION 

 



 
 
 
 

343 | P a g e  
 
 

 
 CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
MINUTES 

27 June 2023 
 
 

The June 27, 2023, meeting of the Cuyahoga County Public Library Board of Trustees was held 
at the Cuyahoga County Public Library Administration Building Auditorium, 2111 Snow Road, 
Parma, Ohio. With a quorum of six (6) Board members present, President DePiero called the 
meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 
 

Roll-Call: Present: Edward H. Blakemore; Allyn Davies; Dean E. DePiero; Patricia 
A. Shlonsky; Maria L. Spangler; Amira Thomas – 6. 

  
  Absent: William J. Leonard – 1. 

 
Also present: Chief Executive Officer Tracy Strobel; Scott Morgan, Chief Operations Officer, 
Pamela Jankowski, Chief Public Services Officer, Hallie Rich, Chief Communications & External 
Relations Officer, Monique Good, Chief Human Resources Officer, Robert Dolan, Finance 
Director, Rebecca Ranallo, Literacy and Learning Division Director, Daniel Barden, Technical 
Services Director, Jeff Mori, Facilities Director, Jim Haprian, IT Director and Robert Rua, 
Marketing & Communications Director, and other interested observers. 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
President DePiero asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the May 23, 2023, Board 
meeting that were sent to the Board members in advance of this meeting. 
 
01-06/2023 
Trustee Blakemore moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Trustee Shlonsky. Seeing no 
corrections, omissions or additions, the minutes of the May 23, 2023, Board Meeting were 
approved by unanimous vote of the Board members present.  
 
Retiree Recognition: 
President DePiero acknowledged that we have three distinguished retirees that are retiring from 
employment at the Cuyahoga County Public Library (CCPL). He thanked Bonnie Benson, Linda 
Buccilli, and Nancy Maureen Paulett for their many years of service to Cuyahoga County Public 
Library and wished them the best on their retirement. Ms. Benson, Ms. Buccilli, and Ms. Paulett 
were not present at the meeting. 
(See pages 352-354) 
 
Public Comment: 
President DePiero asks if there is any one with a public comment to please come forward and 
state your name. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



 
 
 
 

344 | P a g e  
 
 

Lori Jones 
24225 Briarpatch Dr, 
Olmsted Falls, OH 
 
Commented: 
 
My name is Lori Jones. I am a Council-at-Large of Olmsted Falls Ohio. The library went through 
the proper channels, and they requested what looks like a TV screen, a sign that flashes 
information. They went to the Planning and Zoning, and they said they mailed out notices to the 
people in the immediate area that would be seeing the sign and only one of them said they got a 
notice and that the others did not, and they are upset. So it is my job to represent them. They 
have this petition, but initially I said let us just ask if they can turn it down when it gets dark and 
turn it off at 9:00pm so that you can sleep without having the sign shining in your bedrooms, one 
said yes and the rest of them said no. So I have a petition for you that they did sign anyway 
which says “We the undersigned residents of Olmsted Falls living in the residential area on 
Bagley Road and Mapleway Drive where the nonconventional sign will be built by the library are 
petitioning to the Board of Directors of the County Library to commit to ensuring the lights are 
dimmed at dark and at the sign is turned off no later than 9:00pm every evening and not turned 
on before 7:00am the next morning as this bright sign will be flashing into several of our homes 
and will be seen from our homes. The Library and City Hall are on National Historic property 
which does not allow for this type of sign and the ordinances of Olmsted Falls do not allow this 
type of sign, but the Library appealed to Council and asked if they can have it anyway and 
Council voted with the Mayor who really pushed this and the Library won the appeal to put the 
sign in. 
 
The residents in the immediate area do not want this sign shining in their bedrooms and living 
rooms at night. The other thing we are worried about now is a couple of the businesses found 
out and they are pretty upset because they were denied signs because they are not allowed in 
Olmsted Falls and yours will be the only one. 
 
Here are the petitions of the people where it will be shining, and they said they will  gladly collect 
thousands of signatures if you prefer. But these are just the immediate people on Bagley Road. 
 
I have a letter here from the guy where the sign will be shining right into his house. He lives right 
at Mapleway Drive and Bagley Road and he said he wants you to consider it. He does not want 
it shining in his house, or in his bedroom. He lives right around the corner in the yellow house 
closest to it, because there are houses there. It is not a commercial area. He is asking you to 
please do not build it. Thank you and I know they are still out gathering more signatures. 
 
President DePiero stated we appreciate you coming before the board and raising your 
concerns. We will definitely get with the staff and just take a look at it. We appreciate you 
bringing it to our attention. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 
 
 
 

345 | P a g e  
 
 

Janet Tomasch 
7522 River Road 
Olmsted Falls, OH 
 
Commented: 
 
My name is Janet Tomasch. I am the Chair of the Architectural Board of Review a requirement 
for signage. 
 
As Lori stated, this sign is in a residential neighborhood. It sits next to our City Hall. This is 
currently the sign that the library has, (showing pictures) which gives very little information. I 
realize they want to be able to put their programming on their sign. I suggested that they go 
back and really address their website because it is an excellent website. I said all that 
information is available to the public and I do not realize if they have access to that. This is City 
Hall that it sits next to, and this is what the library looks like from Mapleway Drive. It is a small 
library. But this library has been in existence since 2016. There is a shared driveway into City 
Hall and the library. I suggested as a remedy that we could at least name it Library Drive so 
people could find the building, but that has gone nowhere. They have proposed to take down 
the current city sign, which is a changeable copy, but externally lit, which is the real issue here. 
And replace it with their new digital sign. I would first of all like to acknowledge that we are really 
proud of and love this library. We have shared with the City of Olmsted Township and Olmsted 
Falls, and we work together on projects. It was originally in an old town that was the Lewis 
House Library which was agreed upon in the North Olmsted Falls area and they introduced the 
Oxcart Library to Olmsted Falls  and called it Olmsted Falls rather than another name. The 
Oxcart Library found its permanent home in the North Olmsted Library. I do not know why that 
happened. So we have lost that library, technically is what distinguishes that the site of the 
library and why it was chosen. And they really outgrew the space on the mainstage where they 
had been located and they moved into, as I said, this library in 2016. We denied them access to 
the sign because it is internally illuminated. We do not allow internal illumination in our Historic 
Districts, and Lewis House Library sits on property that is owned by the City and the City 
property is on the National Register. This landmark designation is the highest achievement a 
building could have. So we do not want to see it denigrated. They have also recommended or 
said that they would take down the current sign that the Olmsted Falls uses and replace it with 
this double-sided sign. 
 
President DePiero stated you both eloquently talked about what the issues are, we will take a 
look at it. We appreciate you bringing your concerns to the board. 
 
President DePiero stated he does know that this board and our administration did go through 
the proper channels with the city. We respect the process, and he knows the Director, and staff 
respect the process. We go through the process like anybody else, and we are very sensitive to 
residents. He stated that he has been involved in a number of projects with the library, not only 
as Mayor, but now as Chairperson. He stated you are our constituents, and we are concerned 
about that. We are never going to please everybody, but we will certainly take your comments 
into consideration. We will review it, but I just want to make it clear that my understanding is we 
went through the correct process. 
 
 
 
 

3



 
 
 
 

346 | P a g e  
 
 

Report of the Board President: 
President DePiero does not have a report and wished everyone a Happy 4th of July and be safe. 
A great week to celebrate our freedom. 
 
Report of the Chief Executive Officer: 
Chief Executive Officer Strobel mentioned we have a great learning moment this evening.  
 
Chief Executive Officer Strobel thanked the Board for their support in sending several CCPL 
staff to Chicago this past weekend for the American Library Association (ALA) Conference. It 
was a great opportunity to learn from our peer libraries and network with leaders from other 
libraries across the nation. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Strobel shared the announcement regarding our 2023-2024 Writer’s 
Center Stage series. It will be our 20th season and our best yet. Bill Kelly, CCPL Adult Services 
Manager keeps producing fantastic authors. Our opening presentation will be by Ann Patchett 
and Kevin Wilson. Our second will be Michelle Zauner. Our third Henry Winkler will be here. 
Next, we have Hernan Diaz, Rebecca Makkal, and then our final ending presentation in our 20th 
Season will be a pair Imani Perry and Klese Laymon. We are very excited for this season, 
having a lot of best-selling and award-winning authors. We encourage you to get your tickets. 
Based on the responses at our final session a couple of weeks ago, it will be an immensely 
popular season. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Strobel introduced our learning moment guests from the branches who 
will be presenting readers advisory books and talks on some great new books. Sarah Polace, 
CCPL Children's Librarian, CCPL Bay Village Branch, Sarah Carpenter, CCPL Teen Librarian, 
CCPL Parma Heights Branch, and Kate Merlene, CCPL Adult Librarian, CCPL Orange Branch. 
 
Sarah Polace top three Children’s titles were:   

 Search for a Giant Squid by Amy Seto Forrester & Andy Chou Musser 
 Half Moon Summer by Elaine Vickers 
 You Are Here: Connecting Flights edited by Ellen Oh 

 
Sarah Carpenter top three Teen titles were: 

 Hidden Systems: Water, Electricity, the Internet, and the Secrets Behind the Systems 
We Use Every Day by Dan Nott 

 In Nightfall by Suzanne Young 
 Throwback by Maureen Goo 

 
Kate Merlene top three Adult titles were: 

 The Puzzle Master by Danielle Trussoni 
 The Con Queen of Hollywood by Scott C. Johnson 
 Banyan Moon by Thao Thai 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 
 
 
 

347 | P a g e  
 
 

Human Resources Report: 
Human Resources Chief Good summarized the HR report. There are nine (9) new hires, one (1) 
rehire, twenty-six (26) that picked up extra hours for Summer Fun For Everyone(SFFE), three 
(3) added second rate,  one (1) added third rate, five (5) increased hours, one (1) promotion,  
two (2) temporary hours to permanent, two (2) transfers and, three (3) retirements. 
 
02-06/2023 
Trustee Shlonsky moved approval, seconded by Trustee Spangler. Seeing no discussion, the 
Human Resources Report dated June 27, 2023, was approved as presented by unanimous vote 
of the Board members present. (See pages 355-362) 
 
Finance Committee Report: 
Finance Chairperson Davies stated we did not have a Finance committee meeting and Chief 
Morgan will give an in-depth financial report at this meeting. 
 
Chief Morgan stated we did not receive any distributions for either of our property tax levies (2.5 
and 1.0 Mills) from the County. We have already received advances and the first half 
settlement. We should begin to receive advances against our second half in June. We did 
receive our reimbursement from the State for Homestead and Roll-back for the 2.5 mill levy.  
 
Chief Morgan stated the Public Library Fund (PLF) distribution was received in the amount of 
$2,509,506.16. We will continue to track those amounts monthly, as we did last year. Based on 
a comparison to last year, this distribution was less than the amount received in May 2022.  
 
Chief Morgan stated patron fines and fees collected in May were up from last year. Once again, 
we saw an increase in passport fees for the month based on what we saw last year.  
 
Chief Morgan stated we continue to see an increase in the amount of interest we are receiving 
on our investments. We will continue to monitor this account and may need to increase the 
revenue budget towards the end of the year to account for this increase. 

Chief Morgan stated the remainder of the revenue accounts are where we would expect them to 
be five months into our fiscal year. 

Chief Morgan stated the salaries and benefits accounts for five months into our fiscal year are 
within budget.  
 
Chief Morgan stated the library materials accounts reflect an overall expense and encumbrance  
of 52.3%. This is typical as the beginning of the year is a larger buying time for materials. 

Chief Morgan stated some of the expense accounts show a larger percentage expensed and 
encumbered. This reflects the blanket purchase orders for the year, which increases the 
encumbrances.  
 
Chief Morgan noted we have also updated the Capital Fund projects to reflect all the current 
expenses and encumbrances for the projects.(See Under FINANCE) 

 

 

 

5



 
 
 
 

348 | P a g e  
 
 

Investments - May 
Chief Morgan stated there were four purchases of Commercial Paper purchased for the month 
as follows: 

 JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,000,000 at a yield of 5.27% 
 Td Securities $860,000 at a yield of 5.31% 
 JP Morgan Securities LLC $400,000 at a yield of 5.41% 
 JP Morgan Securities LLC $290,000 at a yield of 5.44% 

Transfers 
Chief Morgan stated there were two transfers for the month: 

 $1,666.05 from the General Fund into ASPIRE for a match for the SNAP program. 
 $1,648.16 from the General Fund into ASPIRE for additional match for the SNAP 

program. 

03-06/2023 
Trustee Blakemore moved approval, seconded by Trustee Davies. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the Investment Report Fiscal 2023 – May listing all Money Market Funds, Star Ohio 
Accounts, U.S. Treasury Investments, Certificates of Deposit and Agency Securities was 
approved as presented by roll-call vote. (See Under FINANCE) 
 

Roll-Call: Yea:  Edward H. Blakemore; Allyn Davies; Dean E. DePiero; Patricia A. 
Shlonsky; Maria L. Spangler; Amira Thomas – 6. 

 
  Nea:  – 0. 
 
Purchase Approval List 
Chief Morgan stated Item #1 through Item #3 are encumbrance increases. Item #1 is an 
increase from $80,000.00 to $90,000.00 for additional construction legal services for CCPL 
Orange Branch construction dispute which was settled. Supplier, Roetzel & Andress LPA. 
Director Dolan stated Item #2 is an increase from $424,022.00 to $436,061.00 for an additional 
forty user licenses for the new HRIS & Payroll software. Supplier, Kronos SaaShr Inc, A UKG 
Company. Director Rua stated Item #3 is an increase from $20,000.00 to $65,000.00 for 
additional website development needed in conjunction with the new ILS launch in August. 
Supplier, Designing Interactive LLC. 
 
Chief Morgan stated Item #4 and Item #5 are Grant encumbrance increases. Director Ranallo 
stated Item #4 is an increase from $12,800.00 to $15,800.00 for additional Family Space 
consulting services through the end of the year. Supplier, Two Gen-U-Win Educational 
Consulting, LLC. Chief Jankowski stated Item #5 is an increase from $10,000.00 to $25,000.00 
for additional organizational internships as part of the Adult Education Services Ohio Means 
Jobs Program.  
 
Chief Morgan stated Item #6 through Item #10 are new purchases. Director Haprian stated Item 
#6 is for 172 phone headsets for branch staff desk phones. Supplier, Logicalis. Cost 
$36,464.00. Chief Good stated Item #7 is for consulting services for the new Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) position, posting and recruiting applicants. Supplier, Organizational Architecture 
Inc. Cost $29,500.00. Director Rua stated Item #8 is to replace exterior and interior signage at 
CCPL Parma-Snow Branch to conform to signage standards, improve wayfinding, and replace 
damaged exterior signs. Supplier, ASI Signage. Cost $62,022.00. Director Rua stated Item #9 is 
to replace exterior and interior signage at CCPL Parma-Powers Branch to conform to signage 

6



 
 
 
 

349 | P a g e  
 
 

standards, replace damaged signs, and replace sign with old CCPL branding and the branch’s 
previous name of “Parma Branch”. Director Barden stated Item #10 is to replace Content Café 
Syndetics Unbound software, year 1 of 3. This is a three-year subscription and has a total 
amount not-to-exceed $91,800.00. Supplier, Proquest LLC. Cost $30,600.00. Director Ranallo 
stated Item #11 is to renew TutorMate High Dosage Tutoring Program services at 7 locations as 
part of the Libraries Accelerated Learning grant. Supplier, Innovations for Learning. Cost 
$17,500.00. 
 
Chief Morgan stated Item #12 through Item #14 are Capital Fund new purchases. Director Mori 
stated Item #12 is for construction observation and materials testing of the Innovation Center 
addition at CCPL Solon Branch as part of the Federal grant projects. Supplier, Geo Sci 
Laboratory. Cost $25,000.00. Director Mori stated Item #13 is for construction observation and 
materials testing at the Brooklyn site for the new CCPL Brooklyn Branch. Supplier, Geo Sci 
Laboratory. Cost $40,000.00. Director Mori stated Item #14 is for installation of electric service 
for the new construction for CCPL new Brooklyn Branch. Supplier, Illuminating Company/First 
Energy Company. Cost $16,291.00.  
 
04-06/2023 
Trustee Blakemore moved approval of Purchase Approval List, seconded by Trustee Shlonsky. 
Seeing no additional discussion, the Purchase Approval List dated June 27, 2023, was 
approved as presented by unanimous vote of the Board members present.(See pages 363-365) 
 
Gift Report 
Chief Morgan stated the gift report includes Friends gifts for branch programming supplies. We 
received $20,000.00 from Parker Hannifin Foundation for programming. 
 
05-06/2023 
Trustee Blakemore moved for approval of the Gift Report, seconded by Trustee Davies. The gift 
report was approved by unanimous vote of the Board members present. (See page 366) 
 

 Resolution to Amend Official Certificate of Estimated Resources and Amend 
Appropriations 

Chief Morgan stated this resolution is to amend both the certificate and estimated resources and 
appropriations amendments both in special revenue fund for Adult Education Services (AES).  
 
06-06/2023 
Trustee Blakemore moved approval, seconded by Trustee Shlonsky. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the Resolution to Amend Official Certificate of Estimated Resources and Amend 
Appropriations was approved by unanimous vote of the Board members present by roll-call 
vote. (See page 367) 
 

Roll-Call: Yea:  Edward H. Blakemore; Allyn Davies; Dean E. DePiero; Patricia A. 
Shlonsky; Maria L. Spangler; Amira Thomas – 6. 

 
   Nea:  – 0. 
 
 
 
 

7



 
 
 
 

350 | P a g e  
 
 

 Resolution to Negotiate an Agreement in Connection with the Renovation and 
Addition of the Solon Branch Library 

Director Mori stated the Board approved of our advertising proposals from firms for Construction 
Manager at Risk (CMR) services for the renovation and addition to the Solon Library Branch in 
accordance with the Request for Qualifications (RFQ). The library has ranked three (3) 
construction firms under consideration for this work. Upon negotiation of an agreement with the 
ranked firm, we will present that negotiated agreement to the Board for final approval. 

 
1.Infinity Construction Company 
2.Panzica Construction Company 
3. Independence Construction 

 
07-06/2023 
Trustee Blakemore moved approval, seconded by Trustee Shlonsky. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the Resolution to Negotiate an Agreement in Connection with the Renovation and 
Addition of the Solon Branch Library was approved by unanimous vote of the Board members 
present. (See pages 368-369) 
 

 Approval of Internet, Computers, and Wi-Fi Network Use Policy 
Chief Jankowski stated we are asking for board approval of the Internet, Computers, and Wi-Fi 
Network Use Policy. This policy was reviewed in detail at the Policy, Planning & External 
Relations (PPER) Committee meeting held prior to this meeting. 
 
08-06/2023 
Trustee Shlonsky moved approval, seconded by Trustee Spangler. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the approval of the Internet, Computers, and Wi-Fi Network Use Policy was 
approved by unanimous vote of the Board members present. (See page 370) 
 

 Approval of Employment Practices – Applications Policy 
Chief Good stated we are asking for board approval of the Employment Practices – Applications 
Policy. This policy was reviewed in detail at the Policy, Planning & External Relations (PPER) 
Committee meeting held prior to this meeting. 
 
09-06/2023 
Trustee Spangler moved approval, seconded by Trustee Blakemore. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the approval of the Employment Practices – Applications Policy  was approved by 
unanimous vote of the Board members present. (See pages 371-373) 
 

 Approval of Compensation Practices Break and Meal Periods 
Chief Good stated we are asking for board approval of the Compensation Practices Break and 
Meal Periods Policy. This policy was reviewed in detail at the Policy, Planning & External 
Relations (PPER) Committee meeting held prior to this meeting. 
 
10-06/2023 
Trustee Shlonsky moved approval, seconded by Trustee Spangler. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the approval of the Compensation Practices Break and Meal Periods Policy  was 
approved by unanimous vote of the Board members present. (See pages 374-375) 
 
 
 

8



 
 
 
 

351 | P a g e  
 
 

 Approval of Employment Practices Position Appointment 
Chief Good stated we are asking for board approval of the Employment Practices Position 
Appointment Policy. This policy was reviewed in detail at the Policy, Planning & External 
Relations (PPER) Committee meeting held prior to this meeting. 
 
11-06/2023 
Trustee Davies moved approval, seconded by Trustee Shlonsky. Seeing no additional 
discussion, the approval of the Employment Practices Position Appointment Policy was 
approved by unanimous vote of the Board members present. (See pages 376-378) 
 
Motion to Adjourn 
Seeing no other business under consideration for vote, President DePiero asked for a motion to 
adjourn the meeting.  
 
12-06/2023 
Upon motion of Trustee Blakemore, seconded by Trustee Shlonsky the June 27, 2023, meeting 
of the Cuyahoga County Public Library adjourned at 5:51 p.m. 
 
 
Approved July 25, 2023 
 
 
 
X________________________ 
Dean E. DePiero 
President 
 
 
 
X_______________________ 
Maria L. Spangler 
Secretary 
 
 

9



 

Of Tracy Koziol 
 
WHEREAS,  
Tracy Koziol has served with great loyalty as an employee of the 
Cuyahoga County Public Library since her hire on March 5, 1991, as a 
Sorting Page at the Parma Regional Branch; on August 8, 1994, she 
transferred to Added Copy Clerk – Cataloging Department in the 
Administration Building; on October 1, 2004, she had a job reclassification 
and title change to Cataloging Clerk; on September 22, 2008, she had a 
job reclassification and title change to Catalog Assistant; on May 31, 2009 
she had a job reclassification and title change to TSD Assistant – 
Cataloging, a position she held until her retirement on June 30, 2023; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  
Tracy was a dedicated member of the Cataloging Department staff, who 
remained a steadying presence in a department that underwent many 
changes over the years; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  
Her warm and friendly personality made everyone feel happy to work 
with her. Tracy, who liked to be modest and quiet, at her heart, was a 
strong team player who went out of her way to help her coworkers 
whenever possible; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  
Tracy proved herself to be a conscientious employee who was not afraid 
to ask questions to learn more about cataloging and to make sure that 
her work was as accurate as possible. She could be counted on to get 
the job done. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED 
that the Board of Library Trustees records its appreciation to Tracy Koziol 
for all the years of service she has rendered to the Library and the public 
and extends to her all good wishes for a happy, healthy, and rewarding 
life.  

 

Dean E. DePiero, President  
Board of Trustees  
Cuyahoga County Public Library  
Date: July 25, 2023 

10



 

Of Elizabeth (Liz) Starcovic 
 
WHEREAS,  
Elizabeth (Liz) Starcovic has served with great loyalty as an employee of 
the Cuyahoga County Public Library since her hire on May 7, 2007, as a 
Branch Clerk at the North Royalton Branch; on March 29, 2015, she had a 
title change to Branch Services Clerk, a position she held until her 
retirement on June 30, 2023; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  
Liz was a dedicated member of the North Royalton Circulation Staff, 
where she made many friends and always assisted customers with 
kindness and respect while giving them her full attention even during the 
busiest times; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  
Liz was affectionately nicknamed “Passport Magnet” as she seemed to 
always attract the most customers applying for passports during her 
shifts. She patiently and professionally guided them through the process.  
Liz was excellent at following up with the Nation Passport Center (NPC) to 
make sure all passport applications were delivered; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  
Liz displayed strong organizational skills, dedication, initiative, and a 
strong work ethic. She handled the “problem drawer” and used her 
detective skills to track down missing pieces and parts. Liz also handled 
the Union candy sales. A conscientious employee who was well-loved by 
her coworkers and customers, Liz was always willing to lend a helping 
hand, no matter what the task. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED 
that the Board of Library Trustees records its appreciation to Elizabeth 
(Liz) Starcovic for all the years of service she has rendered to the Library 
and the public and extends to her all good wishes for a happy, healthy, 
and rewarding life.  

 

Dean E. DePiero, President  
Board of Trustees  
Cuyahoga County Public Library  
Date: July 25, 2023 

11



This page intentionally left blank.

12



Chief Executive Off icer’s

Message

“A Field of Dreams” 

A new era of library service is coming in Brooklyn, Ohio. On Thursday, July 13, 2023, we broke ground for a new 
Brooklyn Branch of Cuyahoga County Public Library (CCPL) on Memphis Avenue. The new branch will be in an ideal 
spot near Memorial Park and the Brooklyn Senior Community Center, and across the street from the city’s beautiful 
new City Hall complex and John M. Coyne Recreation Center. The 25,000 square foot branch will replace CCPL’s 
existing Brooklyn Branch on Ridge Road. We expect to celebrate the grand opening of the new library a year from 
now.

Our existing Brooklyn Branch has served us well for many years, but it is undersized to serve a community of 
Brooklyn’s size and in need of replacement. The new branch will not only be larger, but it will also be better equipped 
to adapt to changing community needs over time and include amenities that will allow us to enhance our service to 
the community, such as a drive-up services window, community meeting space, a dynamic children’s area, and an 
Innovation Center. Another notable feature of the new branch will be a dedicated Pearson Vue Testing Center, where 
adult learners can obtain their GED® or pursue workforce certifi cations. 

To mark the occasion, we received proclamations from U.S. Senator Sherrod Brown, Congressman Max Miller, and 
State Senators Matt Dolan and Matt Huff man (President of the Ohio Senate) acknowledging the important role that 
libraries play as centers of community life and learning. Brooklyn Mayor Ron Van Kirk and members of city council 
joined us for the groundbreaking ceremony along with Representative Richard Dell’Aquila of Ohio House District 15, 
Cuyahoga County District 3 Councilman Martin Sweeney, and State Senator Matt Dolan. Senator Dolan is the 2023 
recipient of the Ohio Library Council’s Carnegie Award, which is given to members of the Ohio General Assembly 
who have exhibited outstanding support of public libraries and advocated on their behalf in the state legislature. 
Standing at the podium Senator Dolan gestured to the construction site behind him, calling it “a fi eld of dreams.” 
“It’s easy to be an advocate for libraries in Ohio,” he said, “because of what librarians do inside … they produce 
dreams … they produce economic opportunities.” 

The Brooklyn Branch groundbreaking highlighted for me one of the many reasons Ohio libraries (and CCPL in 
particular) are so special. We have legislators who understand how integral we are to our communities as places 
of opportunity and possibility. Legislators who understand the tremendous value we bring to our communities as 
places of learning and centers of workforce development. We are grateful for their support and look forward to 
celebrating the grand opening with them and the Brooklyn community next year. 

Tracy R. Strobel 

Chief Executive Offi  cer

13



Social Media

Facebook Fans: 36,620

Instagram Followers: 7,438

Twitter Followers: 11,264

We love summer reading challenges! Have you 
started yours, CFEVS?? 
@CuyahogaLib has a great Bingo program. We 
are enjoying @KentFreeLibrary’s nature-themed 
programming! #ReadAllSummer

@Mrs_Jameson_CF, June 7, 2023

 Free Summer Lunches!  From now until 
August 11, @CuyahogaLib is teaming up with 
@CleFoodBank to provide FREE daily lunches 
for kids under 18 at 11 locations while supplies 
last. Visit http://cuyahogalibrary.org for more 
information.

@literacycoop, June 8, 2023

Today’s forum is part of our Authors in 
Conversation Series sponsored by @
CuyahogaLib
and, in part, by the residents of Cuyahoga County 
through a public grant from @CuyArtsC. Thank 
you for your support! #CityClub

@TheCityClub, June 9, 2023

Happy 60th birthday to Cuyahoga County 
Public Library Parma Heights branch! As a lover 
of libraries, I thank you and your staff  for your 
service! 
@CuyahogaLib

@BrennanforOhio, June 19, 2023

We @CSU_Urban Leadership Academy 
Fridays! Thank you to Bryce Sylvester for 
facilitating today’s Data Driven Decision-Making 
class and to @CuyahogaLib for hosting us.

Just attended an amazing panel discussion 
featuring Ron from @CuyahogaLib and Mary Kay 
Andrews! #alaac2023 #ala2023

@ByWaterSolution, June 25, 2023

System Highlights

On June 7, Brook Park Branch BSA I Ben Cox presented a talk on 
“Traveling with your Tablet.” Fourteen people attended and learned 
about diff erent tips and tricks for using your smart device before, during 
and after your vacation. Customers learned about diff erent apps to book 
trips, ways to get around on the go and diff erent settings you might 
need during your travels.  

Eating Smart - Being Active (June 6th, 13th, 20th, 27th ) at the Richmond 

Heights Branch, was presented by the OSU Extension’s Expanded Food 
and Nutrition Education Program (EFNEP) on June 6, 13, 20 and 27. The 
series teaches parents and caregivers of children how to eat healthier 
and be more active on a budget. The nine lessons of the curriculum 
include the latest, research-based information from the Dietary 
Guidelines for Americans and MyPlate. Each week the lessons address 
topics about: physical activity; nutrition and healthy lifestyle choices; 
food preparation and food resource management and contain a variety 
of hands-on activities to reinforce learning and allow participants to 
apply the newly learned information. A total of 22 people attended the 
June sessions. 

On June 27, Mayfi eld Branch children’s librarian Stephanie Johnson 
received a lovely compliment from a mother after toddler storytime. 
This mother shared that she and her son had been in the United States 
for the past six months for her husband’s job and that they would soon 
be returning to their home in South Africa. The mother teared up as she 
explained how much she appreciated Ms. Stephanie’s storytime. She 
said, “My son was so closed when we came here, and now he has really 
opened up - you have been integral to his growth. We had to come today 
- we could not miss his last storytime!” Johnson almost teared up upon 
hearing this and she told the mother that she was so happy to hear that 
her son had benefi tted so much from storytime and that she would 
miss them both very much.

On June 29, BSL II Tim Protiva and his puppet buddy Fuzzig hosted a 
Puppet Storytime Extravaganza at the Strongsville Branch. Attendees 
were delighted by folktales, stories and songs, including the Tale of the 
Enormous Turnip in which some of the children helped Farmer Fuzzig 
pull an enormous turnip out of the ground. An enthusiastic crowd of 
150 people of all ages attended. Protiva received awesome reviews of 
the performance.

Gates Mills Branch Teen Librarian Mia Cowan introduced author 
Margaret Peterson Haddix at the Mayfi eld Middle School on June 2 
during her book tour for her latest novel Falling Out of Time. Cowan took 
the opportunity to promote Summer Reading to the 120 students and 15 
staff  members. 

14



System Highlights

On June 3, more than 320 customers were absolutely 
enthralled by the Brooklyn Branch’s Summer Reading 
Challenge Kickoff  event, featuring the Dino in Ohio show. 
The large and very realistic T-Rex puppets were a huge 
hit with all the attendees, as were the staff -made Dino 
Stampers (allowing kids to leave their own dino-prints 
on branch sidewalks) and the super dinosaur headband 
craft. Children’s BSA II Alex Ward, BSAs Debbie Szabo and 
Sarah Markovich, and Adult BSL II Sarah Flinn teamed up 
to plan and host the event. The Friends of Brooklyn Library 
provided funding for the show, as well as dinosaur-themed 
goody bags for families to take home with them. It was a 
fun-fi lled day for customers and staff  alike!

The Brecksville Branch hosted 47 participants at the 
Summer Fun for Everyone program on June 28. The 
activities focused on coding-themed projects along with 
STEAM exploratory stations. BSA II Lynne White led the 
program that began with youth writing their names in 
binary code and then creating beaded necklaces to match 
the code. Another feature was drawing Minecraft Selfi es 
on graph paper and then coloring them with markers or 
crayons. During exploratory stations, youth and many 
parents worked together using the coding language 
Scratch on laptops to program fl ying cats, explored 
electronics with Snap Circuits, STEM apps on the iPads, and 
enjoyed unplugged games such as Rush Hour and Tetris 
to name a few. Many participants were so engaged they 
stayed the full 3 hours.

The Chagrin Falls Branch hosted eight Summer Fun for 
Everyone sessions in June for a total of 101 participants. On 
Tuesdays, rising Kindergarten to third graders were invited 
to read and play literacy games with a teen volunteer, and 
then work on a STEAM challenge. On Wednesdays, the 
Family storytime session engaged families with STEAM 
themed facts and a project. And on Thursdays, rising fourth 
to sixth graders attended for their own STEAM challenge. So 
far, STEAM concepts have included tangrams, green screen 
technology, weaving, cardboard engineering, and magic.

On June 20, 14 students tried their hand at building a 
putt-putt golf course during Summer Fun For Everyone at 
the Independence Branch. Teams were created and used 
iPads and paper to research ideas and design their own 
hole. When a design was in place, they gathered materials 
and built their creations. When all holes were complete, 
students putted their way through the course of fi ve holes. 

Parma Heights Branch BSL Bridget Lavelle hosted “Life 
of Taras Shevchenko” on June 22. WordStage actors, 
accompanied by violinists, presented a dramatic 
historical re-enactment reading of Taras Shevchenko 
including his poetry and accompanied by two violinists 
who played beautiful Ukrainian folk music. A total 
of 38 people attended.

The South Euclid-Lyndhurst Branch Children’s Department 
hosted a Skunk Meet-and-Greet with a local non-profi t 
Skunk Haven Skunk Rescue. Kids and caregivers learned 
about diff erent types of skunks, their diet and tips for 
dealing with skunks in the backyard. As the fi nale, kids were 
able to pet two pet skunks – Luke and Eddy. A total of 47 
children and 27 adults attended. 

In the month of June, North Royalton Branch Teen BSL I 
Rebecca Baldwin hosted the series program “Teen Steam 
Explorers” on Thursday evenings. A total of 70 teens 
participated in the series that included making Cricut 
Stickers, learning to fl y drones, experimenting with new 
ways to cook instant Ramen and screen printing a canvas.

On June 17, Parma-Powers 

Branch BSA Jessica Robinson facilitated the program 
“Watercolor for Beginners,” for 12  customers. The 
program provided an educational component, 
which covered things such as selecting appropriate 
supplies, color theory, mixing paints to create a color 
wheel, exploring painting techniques, the psychology 
involved in painting and other steps to success in 
watercolor art. The program also allowed customers 
to spend an hour experimenting with the skills they 
learned and working with watercolor pigments and other 
provided supplies. The attendees all came up with their 
own distinct color wheel pallets and unique artwork. Along 
with their vibrant creations, customers went home 
with additional, helpful resources, including handouts 
listing essential books on watercolor art, the names of 
helpful YouTube channels, and instructions on how to 
access the Creative Bug database.

15



The Adult Department hosted avid divers Georgann and 
Mike Wachter, who came to the Solon Branch on June 14 to 
share their experiences diving and discovering shipwrecks 
in Lake Erie. The Wachters brought incredible stories 
and footage of famous Erie wrecks as well as ones they 
personally located. They also displayed maritime artifacts 
they recovered from the depths. The audience of 52 could 
not get enough of the Wachters. 

On June 27 and 29, Fairview Park Branch BSL I Ami Bray 
hosted six students in the fi rst of her sewing programs – 
“Teen Sewing 101: Hand Sewing.” The teens learned about 
what supplies are good to have in a well-stocked sewing 
box and basic hand-sewing stitches. The fi nal project 
involved using conductive thread and LEDs to make a 
wearable LED bracelet! Half the attendees were successful 
in getting the LEDs to light up, with the remaining students 
just a few stitches shy of fi nishing during the class.

On June 3, local graffi  ti artist and The Pop Shop Studio 
owner R!ch Cihlar led three outdoor graffi  ti stencil 
workshop sessions at the Parma-Snow Branch. A total 
of 10 teen attendees learned the basics of creating 
graffi  ti artwork, beginning with intricate patterns on their 
canvases before accenting with more robust, bold designs. 
Windy weather made conditions challenging, but the teens 
adapted well and each left with a unique piece of artwork.

In June, the Orange Branch hosted University Hospitals’ 
“Pet Pals” program on four Wednesdays for 98 
participants in grades 2-5. Children read to specially 
trained dogs. The program has been shown to help 
struggling readers become more confi dent in their 
reading abilities. After the fi rst week, Jessica, mom of 
fourth grader Libby, emailed Children’s Librarian Maryanne 
Haller, to say, “Thank you so much for the nice program. 
My daughter had such a nice time!”

On June 15, Bedford Branch BSL Supervisor Paula Brosowski 
conducted a beginning computer class at the Bedford 
Heights Community Center. There were 10 participants. 
This was the fi rst of the monthly computer classes that 
Brosowski will be teaching for Bedford Heights. It went 
well and everyone seemed to enjoy the class. It fi ts in well 
with the branch’s digital literacy goals because it provides 
an opportunity to talk with the participants about online 
safety and managing one’s digital footprint as well as 
keeping them informed of CCPL programs and services.

On June 17, the Warrensville Heights Branch held its 
5th Annual Juneteenth Celebration! This year, attendees 
enjoyed live music, poetry, an American history discussion 
and a presentation from the Cleveland Association of Black 
Storytellers. As a special treat, there was a presentation 
from the editor of Man on a Mission, a book that chronicles 
the struggles and triumphs of the legendary Civil Rights 
Activist, James Meredith. More than 60 customers of all 
ages attended the event. 

Also, on June 29, the Warrensville Heights Branch 
Innovation Center offi  cially opened!  More than 100 
customers came to see Generalist Tessa Baer, ITD Specialist 
Matt Skvasik and Bay Village Branch Generalist Andrea 
Carroll demonstrate the Long Arm Quilting machine, the 
Sublimation Printer and Heat Press and the Embroidery 
machine. Customers enjoyed light refreshments outside 
the studio where they were also able to speak to the 
President of the African American Quilt and Doll Guild who 
was signing copies of her book, The Quilting Storyteller. The 
members of the guild have been helpful in promoting and 
using the Innovation Center and their enthusiasm rubbed 
off  on everyone!

North Olmsted Branch Teen Librarian Katie 
Power organized an opening celebration of the new Teen 
Space on June 7 for students in grades 6 – 12. The 
celebration included button making, a Sphero play course, 
Cricut stickers, zine making and a special teen-lead 
art piece that will remain in the Teen Space. Innovation 
Programming Specialist Matt Skvasik helped with the 
many activities. Fifty-fi ve teens were brimming with 
excitement over the new space. They enjoyed cookies 
and connected with their peers and library staff  through 
each activity. It was a special day for our teen community.  

The Garfi eld Heights Branch’s monthly produce distribution 
continues to be a much needed and well-attended service. 
On June 7, BSL Supervisor Colin Marshall and Branch 
Manager Megan Barrett worked with six volunteers to 
serve a variety of produce to 171 households (serving a total 
of 443 people). Of the 171 households served, 35 were brand 
new customers!

Middleburg Heights Branch author events continue to do 
well. Thirty-fi ve people came to see Katherine Reay on June 
20 and 63 attended Victoria Benton Frank’s talk on June 
21. Benton Frank in particular had the crowd in stitches 
and there were many comments about how wonderfully 
entertaining she is!

System Highlights

16



System Highlights
On June 15, Beachwood Branch BSA II Kat Retting, in 
partnership with Mailey Lorio, Interim Director of the 
CWRU LGBT Center, presented “Community Connections: 
Pride Month” to nine enthusiastic family attendees. One 
grandma and granddaughter came to learn more about a 
sister who was a girl who loves her girlfriend who is a girl, 
ending the craft with making a fl ag in the lesbian pride 
colors for her sister.

Seven customers attended the Maple Heights Branch’s 
“Libby, Kanopy & Hoopla, Oh My” – Digital Literacy program 
led by BSA I Charity Pruitt, which covered all three 
applications’ catalogs, capabilities, download and sign up 
on various devices. The customers’ digital literacy varied 
from needing hands-on help to search the web on their 
device, to independently downloading apps from the steps 
demonstrated. Attendees were pleasantly surprised to 
learn of the expansive collection across the apps and ease 
of access. Several stayed after to get additional assistance 
with downloading and logging in to ensure they were 
squared away before leaving.

Olmsted Falls Branch Teen Librarian Lee Ikimis held a 
“Coding with Arduino Camp” with eight individuals over four 
days, for a total attendance of 31 for the week. The teens 
learned the basics to start and then completed working 
projects like making a memory game and a video game 
controller. They enjoyed experimenting with the projects, 
trying to add extra buttons and lights to make the builds 
more complex. 

On June 3, the Berea Branch welcomed more than 250 
children and caregivers to a Summer Reading Kick-off  
Carnival. Guests enjoyed games, crafts and a scavenger 
hunt along with popcorn and free books provided by 
the Berea Kiwanis. The highlights of the afternoon were 
magic performances by The Amazing Jeff rey and balloon 
twisting by Flower Clown, whose line was consistently 
15-20 people deep. Children enjoyed showing off  their 
balloon creations, including mermaids, Pikachu, animals, 
basketball hoops, dragons, unicorns and more. Staff  
registered many enthusiastic children, teens and adults 
for the Summer Reading game and were glad to see so 
many excited community members eager to begin a 
reading-fi lled summer. 

Fifteen customers celebrated the beginning of Pride Month 
at Pride Totes and Tees at the Bay Village Branch. After the 
Innovation Center Orientation, attendees got an in-depth 
look at the Direct-to-Garment printer and printed fun and 
festive designs onto t-shirts and tote bags to sport at 
Cleveland’s Pride March. 

The “Cooking with the 5 Senses” program at the South 

Euclid-Lyndhurst Branch was a great display of teamwork 
and collaboration! Branch Manager Steve Haynie and Social 
Work Manager Bryanta Spencer brainstormed and reached 
out to their networks to bring much needed education 
and resources to the community supporting his theme of 
health and wellness. The positive reception and waitlist 
indicate the need and excitement of those desiring to 
learn new information and make healthy lifestyle changes 
and choices.  Middleburg Heights Branch Manager Ron 
Block and Fairview Park Branch Manager Jesse Sanders 
did a great job moderating the speaking portion and 
trivia. Antione the Artist and Angela the Nutritionist shared 
their story, provided education and graciously responded to 
extensive Q-and-A. Chef T and her team did an amazing job 
prepping the food while the Friends and Spencer organized 
the Farmers Market. Participants ranged from children to 
seniors. The room was fi lled with laughter, positive energy 
and community where seeds of new relationships were 
planted and plans for new collaborations blossomed. Many 
thanks to the South Euclid Community Center for providing 
their space and being so accommodating, the American 
Heart Association for the gift bags for participants, The 
Friends for the amazing raffl  e prizes and taking care of the 
presenters, the presenters: Antione, Angela, and Chef T for 
their time and talents and the Greater Cleveland Foodbank 
for exceeding expectations providing not only the Chef’s 
wish list, but also an additional delivery of a variety of 
healthy options for all to enjoy and looking forward to 
creating more opportunities like this.

17



 
 
 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

JULY 25, 2023 
 
 

ACTIVITIES OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 
 
June 28 

 Met with Monique Good, CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer 
 Attended ORT Ohio Jurisprudence Awards 2023 in recognition of CCPL Trustee 

Patricia Shlonsky, along with CCPL Trustee Allyn Davies, and Trustee Edward 
Blakemore 

June 29 

 Meeting with CCPL Executive Leadership Team, Scott Morgan, CCPL Chief 
Operations Officer, Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer, Hallie 
Rich, CCPL Communications & External Relations Officer, and Monique Good, CCPL 
Chief Human Resources Officer 

 Meeting to discuss the new CCPL Parma Heights Branch, with CCPL Trustee Dean 
DePiero, and Trustee Allyn Davies, and Scott Morgan, CCPL Chief Operations 
Officer, Hallie Rich, CCPL Communications & External Relations Officer 

 Meeting with Ben Crabtree, Senior Associate, Bialosky Cleveland, Pamela 
Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer, to discuss Dauphin “Road Show”  
Business Interiors 

 Participated in interviews with Design Firms; Moody Nolan, HBM Architects, 
Bialosky Cleveland, CBLH Design, and Group4 Architecture for the new CCPL 
Beachwood Branch  

 Attended CCPL Warrensville Heights Branch Innovation Center Opening 
June 30 

 Participated in Interviews with Design Firms; Bialosky Cleveland, CBLH Design, 
and Group4 Architecture for the new CCPL Beachwood Branch  

July 3 

 Met with Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer 
 Meeting with Kiah Shapiro, Chief of Staff, Luci Creative, Sarah Anderson, Senior 

Art Director, Luci Creative, and Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services 
Officer 

July 5 

 Meeting with Mayor Kraus, City of Solon, Angee Shaker, Director of Economic 
Development, City of Solon, Scott Morgan, CCPL Chief Operations Officer, and 
Darlene Davis, CCPL Branch Manager, CCPL Solon Branch to discuss update on 
CCPL Solon Branch Addition/Renovation design and progress  

 Participated in Metro Directors monthly conference call 
 Met with Monique Good, CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 
 
July 6 

 Meeting with CCPL Executive Leadership Team, Scott Morgan, CCPL Chief 
Operations Officer, Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer, Hallie 
Rich, CCPL Communications & External Relations Officer, and Monique Good, CCPL 
Chief Human Resources Officer 

 Attended and gave remarks at CCPL Volunteer Appreciation Event, at CCPL Orange 
Branch 

 CCPL Orange Branch Visit with Anthony Furino, CCPL Orange Branch Manager, and 
staff 

July 7 

 Met with Monique Good, CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer 
 Meeting to discuss CCPL Brooklyn VE/Cost Savings Review with, Ben Crabtree, 

Senior Associate, Bialosky Cleveland, Aaron Hill, Principal, Bialosky Cleveland,  
Mark Panzica, Vice President, Panzica Construction Company, Ken Flesse, Pre-
Construction Lead, Panzica Construction Company, and Scott Morgan, CCPL 
Chief Operations Officer, Jeffrey Mori, CCPL Facilities Director, Pamela Jankowski, 
CCPL Chief Public Services Officer 

July 10 

 Meeting with Justin McCaulley, President, McCaulley&Company, Devon 
Eldridge, Associate, McCaulley&Company, and  Hallie Rich, CCPL Chief 
Communications & External Relations Officer 

 Attended and gave remarks at CCPL’s Annual Reading the Green event, at 
Lakewood Country Club 

July 11 

 CCPL Brooklyn Branch Visit with Kathleen Sullivan, CCPL Brooklyn Branch 
Manager, and staff 

July 12 

 Met with Monique Good, CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer 
 Met with Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer 
 Phone call with Edward Loder, President, The Rowfant Club 
 CCPL Maple Heights Branch Visit with Deva Walker, CCPL Maple Heights Branch 

Manager, and staff 
July 13 

 Attended and gave remarks for CCPL Brooklyn Branch Groundbreaking, with 
Mayor Van Kirk, City of Brooklyn, CCPL Trustee Dean DePiero, CCPL Trustee 
Allyn Davies, and CCPL Trustee Patricia Shlonsky, and other State Officials and 
CCPL Staff   

 Meeting with CCPL Executive Leadership Team, Scott Morgan, CCPL Chief 
Operations Officer, Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer, Hallie 
Rich, CCPL Chief Communications & External Relations Officer, Monique Good, 
CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer, and Bertha Arrington, CCPL Executive 
Division Manager 

July 14 

 Meeting with Marjorie Yano, Assistant Policy Director, Education, Office of 
Governor Mike DeWine and, Justin McCaulley, President, McCaulley&Company, 
and Camryn Pillar, Analyst, McCaulley&Company 

 Met with Felton Thomas, Director, Cleveland Public Library (CPL) 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 
 
July 17  

 Met with Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer 
 Lay Of the Land Podcast - Interview with Jeffrey Stern, Telling the stories of 

entrepreneurship and builders in Cleveland and throughout Northeast Ohio 
July 18 

 Met with Jessica Kanelos, CCPL Development Director  
  Meeting to discuss next steps of new  CCPL Parma Heights Branch with, Mayor 

Gallo, City of Parma Heights, and Ben Crabtree,  Senior Associate, Bialosky 
Cleveland, Aaron Hill, Principal, Bialosky Cleveland, Scott  Morgan, CCPL Chief 
Operations Officer, Jeffrey Mori, CCPL Facilities Director, and  Krista Tokarz, Branch 
Manager, CCPL Parma Heights Branch 

 CCPL Solon Branch Visit with Darlene Davis, CCPL Solon Branch Manager, and 
staff 

July 19 
 Met with Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer, and Daniel Barden, 

CCPL Technical Services Director 
 Met with Monique Good, CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer 
 Meeting to discuss CCPL new Brooklyn Branch Furniture with, Ben Crabtree,  

Senior Associate, Bialosky Cleveland, Aaron Hill, Principal, Bialosky 
Cleveland, and Kate Walker, Associate Interior Design, Bialosky Cleveland, and 
Scott  Morgan, CCPL Chief Operations Officer, Jeffrey Mori, CCPL Facilities 
Director, Pamela Jankowski, Chief Public Services Officer, Kathleen Sullivan, Branch 
Manager, CCPL Brooklyn Branch  

 CCPL Fairview Park Branch Visit with Jesse Sanders, CCPL Fairview Park Branch 
Manager, and staff 

July 20 

 Meeting with CCPL Leadership Team, includes CCPL Executive Leadership Team, 
and Enda Bracken, CCPL Branch Services Director - East, Holly Camino, CCPL 
Branch Services Director – West, and Lane Edwards, CCPL Branch Services 
Director – South, Daniel Barden, CCPL TSD Director, Jim Haprian, CCPL IT 
Director, Jeffery Mori, CCPL Facilities Director, and Rebecca Ranallo, CCPL Literacy 
and Learning Director, Robert Rua, CCPL Marketing Director, Robert Dolan, CCPL 
Finance Director, and Terrance Echols, CCPL Director, Adult Education Services 
(AES) 

 Meeting with Kate Howe, OCLC, Senior Library Services Consultant 
 Presented CCPL Quarterly Town Hall Meeting 
 Meeting with Mark Fiala, Organizational Architecture, Inc., Human Resources  

Consulting, Andrea Griffith, Manager of Human Resources, Wood & Lamping, 
and Ryan Sheehan, Principal Consultant, RS HR Consulting, and Monique Good, 
CCPL Chief Human Resources Officer 

 Attended and gave remarks Sound of Ideas at CCPL Parma Snow Branch 
July 21 

 Attended CCPL Aspire all Staff meeting, along with Pamela Jankowski, Chief Public 
Services Officer, and Terrance Echols, CCPL Director, Adult Education Services 
(AES), at CCPL Maple Heights Branch 

 Meeting with Rick Ortmeyer, Architect, Bostwick Design 
 
 
 
 

20



 
 
 
July 24  

 Meeting with Chris Ronayne, Cuyahoga County Executive, and Fedeli Group 
 Met with Pamela Jankowski, CCPL Chief Public Services Officer 

 Phone call with Janus Small, President and Founder, Janus Small Associates, 
LLC, and Pamela Fine, Associate, Janus Small Associates, LLC 

 Met with Robert Rua, CCPL Marketing Director 
July 25 

 Facilitated CCPL Finance Committee meeting 

 Facilitated CCPL Board of Trustees meeting 
 
 

 
Chief Executive Officer 

21



Visits | June 2023

Year to Date

Monthly

Year-over-Year Growth

22



Circulation | June 2023

Year to Date Total Circulation

Monthly Total Circulation

Year to Date Digital Circulation

Year-over-Year Growth Total Circulation

23



Computer Use | June 2023

Year to Date

Monthly

Public Computer VS. WiFi Usage

24



Programs | June 2023

Year to Date Programs Off ered

Year to Date Program Attendance

Monthly Program Attendance

Average Program Attendance

25



This page intentionally left blank.

26



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME POSITION GRADE SALARY HOURS 
WEEK

COST 
CENTER

REPLACES SALARY REASON HOURS 
WEEK

EFFECTIVE 
DATE

Caton, Emma Branch Services Assistant I SUB 207 $20.09 1 450114 $20.09 New Hire  1 7/9/2023

Garcia, Eileen NBU Page OSP $12.00 12 MDH113 $12.00 New Hire  12 7/3/2023

Kirby, Haydyn NBU Page OSP $12.00 10 BRV113 $12.00 New Hire  10 6/25/2023

Mance, Chloe NBU Page OSP $12.00 12 MDH113 Jennifer Ashforth $12.00 New Hire  12 7/3/2023

Peters, Anthony TSD Clerk ‐ Receiving and Processing 204 $14.49 40 705111 Wilfredo Gonzalez $14.49 New Hire  40 7/17/2023

Salamon, Jack Branch Services Clerk 205 $16.16 16 BRV111 Kimberly Andry $16.16 New Hire  16 7/5/2023

Taylor, Dione Branch Services Librarian ‐ Generalist 208 $22.40 40 GFH111 $22.40 New Hire  40 7/3/2023

Weppelman, Ellen Branch Services Librarian SUB 208 $22.40 1 450114 $22.40 Rehire 1 7/9/2023

APPOINTMENTS

27



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME POSITION COST CENTER GRADE SALARY HRS WEEK
EFFECTIVE 

DATE

Gibbs, Geneva Branch Services Clerk SEU111 205 $17.48 16 7/21/2023

Morrison, Marcus Monitor Mentor SEU112 OSM $23.68 15 6/28/2023

SEPARATIONS

28



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME POSITION
COST 

CENTER
GRADE
 OLD

GRADE 
NEW

HOURS
SALARY 
OLD

SALARY 
NEW

EFFECTIVE 
DATE

Bohlander, Deborah NBU Page BEA113 OEP OSP 12 $12.50 $13.00 5/28/2023

Carrillo, Claudia NBU Page MPL113 OEP OSP 15 $12.50 $13.00 6/25/2023

Dempsey, Jurnee NBU Page MPL113 OEP OSP 15 $12.50 $13.00 6/25/2023

Griffiths, Kelly NBU Page STV113 OEP OSP 15 $12.00 $12.50 6/25/2023

Kays, Carlotta  NBU Page SEU113 OEP OSP 15 $12.50 $13.00 7/9/2023

Kupiec, Mildred NBU Page OLF113 OEP OSP 15 $12.00 $12.50 7/9/2023

Lucko, Nathaniel NBU Page BPK113 OEP OSP 10 $12.50 $13.00 6/25/2023

Moye, London NBU Page PAS113 OEP OSP 15 $12.50 $13.00 7/9/2023

Pastor, Marian NBU Page SLN113 OEP OSP 15 $12.00 $12.50 7/9/2023

Sellman, Aidan NBU Page STV113 OEP OSP 15 $12.00 $12.50 6/25/2023

Wilson, Samantha  NBU Page MAY113 OEP OSP 15 $12.50 $13.00 6/25/2023

ANNIVERSARY PAY ADJUSTMENTS

29



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME POSITION COST CENTER GRADE SALARY HRS WEEK HIRE DATE
LAST WORKING 

DAY

Koziol, Tracy TSD Assistant ‐ Cataloging 701111 206 $25.23 40 3/5/1991 6/30/2023

Starcovic, Elizabeth Branch Services Clerk NRY111 205 $21.93 28 5/7/2007 6/30/2023

RETIREMENTS

30



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME POSITION
COST

CENTER
OLD

COST
CENTER
NEW

GRADE
OLD

GRADE
NEW

HOURS
OLD

HOURS
NEW

SALARY
OLD

SALARY
NEW

REPLACES REASON
HRS 
WEEK

EFFECTIVE 
DATE

Adams‐Driscal, Toya
Branch Services Assistant SUB
Branch Services Clerk SUB

SEU112
450114

450114
450114

OSH
207
205

207
205

15
1
1

1
1

$22.24
$20.09
$16.16

$20.09
$16.16

Transfer to Substitute 
Status 

1
1

7/9/2023

Atassi, Samir
Monitor Mentor
Branch Services Assistant SUB

NOL112
NOL112
450114

OSM
OSM
207

10
10
1

$22.24
$22.24
$20.09

Add Second Rate
10
1

6/25/2023

Barbour, Scott
Branch Services Assistant II
Branch Services Librarian SUB

SEU111
450114

SEU111
450114

207
208

207
208

36
1

40
1

$26.41
$26.41

$26.41
$26.41

Temporary Hours Increase
40
1

6/11/2023

Barbour, Scott
Branch Services Assistant II
Branch Services Librarian SUB

SEU111
450114

SEU111
450114

207
208

207
208

40
1

36
1

$26.41
$26.41

$26.41
$26.41

Temporary Hours Ended
36
1

6/25/2025

Bena, Jane NBU Page
STV113
450114

STV113
OSP
205

OSP
15
1

15
$13.00
$16.16

$13.00 Remove Second Rate 15 7/9/2023

Bessner, Amber Branch Services Assistant II GFH111 GFH111 207 207 28 28 $23.27 $23.97 Promotion 28 6/25/2023

Bickley, Kelly Branch Services Librarian ‐ Generalist 
MDH111
450114

BEA111
207
208

208
20
1

20
$23.27
$23.27

$24.43 Promotion 20 7/9/2023

Block, Ronald Branch Manager MDH112 MDH112 40 40 40 40 $44.20 $46.41 Holly Camino Acting Position Begins  40 7/10/2023

Cawley, McKenna Branch Services Clerk 450114 BPK111 205 205 1 16 $16.16 $16.16 Camille Graley New Role 16 6/25/2023

Close, Kelly Branch Services Clerk  450114 BPK111 205 205 1 16 $16.16 $16.16 Sandra Stonitsch New Role 16 7/9/2023

Hunt, Heather Branch Services Assistant SUB BRV111 450114 207 207 16 1 $21.09 $20.09
Transfer to Substitute 

Status 
1 6/25/2023

Johnson, Stephanie Branch Services Librarian Supervisor MAY111 MAY111 208 209 40 40 $26.58 $27.91 Stephanie Furino Acting Position Begins  40 6/25/2023

Johnston, Robert TSD Clerk 605112 702111 40 204 40 40 $44.20 $16.50 Charles Wirfel New Role 40 7/9/2023

Kay, Megan Branch Services Assistant I  NOL111 NOL111 207 207 28 36 $21.09 $21.09 Increase in Hours  36 6/25/2023

Kish, Eric
Media Services Coordinator 
Branch Services Clerk SUB

613111
450114

404111
450114

208
205

207
205

40
1

40
1

$25.19
$22.63

$25.19
$22.63

Acting Position Begins 
40
1

7/10/2023

CHANGES IN HOURS/SALARY/TRANSFERS

31



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME POSITION
COST

CENTER
OLD

COST
CENTER
NEW

GRADE
OLD

GRADE
NEW

HOURS
OLD

HOURS
NEW

SALARY
OLD

SALARY
NEW

REPLACES REASON
HRS 
WEEK

EFFECTIVE 
DATE

CHANGES IN HOURS/SALARY/TRANSFERS

MacGregor, Elise Branch Services Assistant I  450114 BPK111 207 207 1 16 $20.09 $20.09 New Role 16 7/9/2023

May, Kaleigh
NBU Page
Branch Services Clerk SUB

MPL113
MPL113
450114

OSP
OSP
205

15
15
1

$12.00
$12.00
$16.16

Add Second Rate
15
1

6/25/2023

Moscollic, Kelly TSD Assistant ‐ Cataloging  702111 701111 204 206 40 40 $20.29 $21.30 Tracy Koziol Promotion 40 7/9/2023

Pollard, Dymond
NBU Page
Branch Services Clerk SUB
Branch Services Assistant SUB

BKL113
450114

BKL113
450114
450114

OSP
205

OSP
205
207

15
1

15
1
1

$12.50
$16.16

$12.50
$16.16
$20.09

Add Third Rate 
15
1
1

7/9/2023

Russo, Rene Branch Services Clerk  FPR111 IND111 205 205 24 16 $18.89 $18.89 Karen Haseley Transfer  16 6/25/2023

Sinnema, Amy Branch Services Assistant I  MDH111 MDH111 207 207 16 32 $23.74 $23.74 Increase in Hours  32 7/9/2023

Smith, David
Branch Services Assistant II
Branch Services Librarian SUB

SEU111
450114

SEU111
450114

207
208

207
208

32
1

20
1

$21.73
$23.07

$21.73
$23.07

Temporary Hours Ended
20
1

6/25/2023

Spreng, Erin
Branch Services Clerk 
Branch Services Assistant SUB

NOL111
450114

NOL111
450114

207
207

205
207

40
1

40
1

$22.57
$22.57

$21.50
$21.50

Acting Position Ended 
40
1

7/9/2023

Taylor, Joseph
Branch Services Clerk Supervisor
Branch Services Librarian SUB

506111
450114

NOL111
450114

209
208

207
207

40
1

40
1

$27.11
$27.11

$25.82
$25.82

Acting Position Ended 
40
1

7/9/2023

Thurau, Darlene Branch Services Assistant SUB
504113
450114

450114
OSR
207

207
14
1

1
$22.24
$20.09

$20.09
Transfer to Substitute 

Status 
1 7/9/2023

Wallace, Holly Branch Services Clerk SUB PAS111 450114 205 205 16 1 $17.31 $16.16
Transfer to Substitute 

Status 
1 6/25/2023

Wang, Linda
Monitor Mentor
Branch Services Clerk SUB
Branch Services Assistant SUB

NOL112
NOL112
450114
450114

OSM
OSM
205
207

15
15
1
1

$22.24
$22.24
$16.16
$20.09

Add Second and Third Rate 
15
1
1

6/25/2023

Wright, Brian Shipping & Fleet Services Manager 605111 605112 205 40 40 40 $17.83 $32.81 Robert Johnston Acting Position Begins  40 6/25/2025

Zumack, Magdalena NBU Page 504113 NRY113 OST OSP 10 15 $12.00 $12.00 New Role 15 6/25/2023

32



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION REPORT LIST NO. 2023‐7 July 2023

NAME DATE (S) AMOUNT MILEAGE MEETING

Bartlett, Wendy 09/26/2023 ‐ 09/29/2023 $1,100.00   $  303.92  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Brown, Lisa 7/12/2023 $25.00   $          ‐    Employment Law Update / Akron SHRM / Akron, OH

Dickerson, Eboni 09/26/2023 ‐ 09/29/2023 $1,100.00   $  317.02  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Haller, Maryanne 8/4/2023 $199.27   $  164.27  OLC Outreach and Special Services Retreat / Ohio Library Council / Dublin, OH

Haynes, Traci 10/30/2023 ‐ 11/01/2023 $995.00   $          ‐    SHRM / Society for Homan Resource Management / Savannah, GA

Kappelman, Kalyn 09/27/2023 ‐ 09/29/2023 $1,092.53   $  279.03  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Liedtke, Julie 09/27/2023 ‐ 09/28/2023 $724.05   $  334.05  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Lowther, Chad 09/27/2023 ‐ 09/29/2023 $1,100.00   $  315.71  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Schreiber, Mary 09/26/2023 ‐ 09/28/2023 $1,100.00   $    25.68  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Slater, Mary 09/27/2023 ‐ 09/29/2023 $1,100.00   $  306.47  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

Slater, Mary 8/4/2023 $43.84   $      8.84  OLC Outreach and Special Services Retreat / Ohio Library Council / Dublin, OH

Walker, Jade 09/26/2023 ‐ 09/28/2023 $953.34   $    28.82  OLC Conference and Expo / Ohio Library Council / Cincinnati, OH

$9,533.03 

CONFERENCE AND MEETING ATTENDANCE

33



This page intentionally left blank.

34



Financial Statement Analysis 

June 2023 

 

 

Revenues 

We did not receive any distributions for either of our property tax levies (2.5 and 1.0 
Mills) from the County.  We have already received advances and the first half 
settlement.  (We received our first, second half advance in July as will be reported on 
the July report.)   

Our monthly distribution for the PLF was received in the amount of $2,528,019.06. The 
last budget estimate from the Ohio Department of Budget and Management was 
received and is showing more than what we have budgeted. We will continue to monitor 
the amounts received monthly.  This monthly distribution is more than we received in 
June 2022.   

Patron Fines and Fees collected in June were slightly more than last year.  Although 
passport fees were down slightly, we did receive more than last year for passport 
photos.   

We continue to see an increase in the amount of interest we are receiving on our 
investments.  We will continue to monitor this account and may need to increase the 
revenue budget towards the end of the year to account for this increase. 

The remainder of the revenue accounts are where we would expect them to be halfway 
through our fiscal year. 

 

Expenses 

The Salaries and Benefits accounts for six months into our fiscal year are within budget.   

The Library Materials accounts reflect an overall expense and encumbrance of 60.2%.  
This is typical as the first half of the year is a larger buying time for materials. 

Some of the expense accounts show a larger percentage expensed and encumbered.  
This reflects the blanket purchase orders for the year, which increases the percentage 
expensed and encumbered.   

Please note we have also updated the Capital Fund projects to reflect all the current 
expenses and encumbrances for the projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

35



Investments 

There were five purchases of Commercial Paper purchased for the month as follows: 

 

Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $410,000 at a yield of 5.53% 

JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,500,000 at a yield of 5.79% 

JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,500,000 at a yield of 5.79% 

Usbna/Cp $500,000 at a yield of 5.51% 

Dbtc Americas $500,000 at a yield of 5.92% 

 

Transfers and Advances 

There was one transfer for the month: 

 

$57,560.00 from the General Fund into ASPIRE for the 4th Quarter matach. 

 

 

  

36



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY General Fund
REVENUE                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
Fiscal 2023 -June 50% of Year

Acct. General Fund 2023 2022 Final 2023 MTD 2022 MTD 2023 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 % 2023
No. Line Item Description Revenue Revenue Received Received Received Received Received Balance Notes
1200 General Property Taxes $58,128,450.00 $58,211,919.16 $0.00 $0.00 $32,306,808.02 $31,655,406.58 55.6% ($25,821,641.98)

  Gen Prop Taxes-Rel Estate 2.5 Mills $39,428,450.00 $39,468,008.53 $0.00 $70.95 $21,965,872.63 $21,511,468.10 55.7% ($17,462,577.37)
  Gen Prop Taxes-Rel Estate 1.0 Mills $18,700,000.00 $18,743,910.63 $0.00 $0.00 $10,340,935.39 $10,143,938.48 55.3% ($8,359,064.61)

1250 Intergovernmental $30,654,620.75 $31,116,767.95 $2,528,019.06 $2,314,839.70 $15,650,378.92 $15,618,386.09 51.1% ($15,004,241.83)
  Public Library Fund $25,883,070.75 $26,345,222.57 $2,528,019.06 $2,314,839.70 $13,290,717.75 $13,246,991.92 51.3% ($12,592,353.00)
  Property Taxes $4,771,550.00 $4,771,545.38 $0.00 $0.00 $2,359,661.17 $2,371,394.17 49.5% ($2,411,888.83)

2200 Grants $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
2300 Local Government $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
3100 Patron Fines & Fees $800,000.00 $903,319.09 $78,182.87 $72,803.56 $699,784.32 $460,671.24 87.5% ($100,215.68)

  Fines and Fees Income $50,000.00 $50,060.47 $4,625.14 ($245.90) $18,705.01 $27,948.03 37.4% ($31,294.99)
  Passport Fee $559,400.00 $627,570.00 $53,305.00 $53,865.00 $492,800.00 $320,110.00 88.1% ($66,600.00)
  Passport Photo Fee $180,000.00 $216,220.00 $20,030.00 $18,990.00 $172,480.00 $108,300.00 95.8% ($7,520.00)
  Electric Vehicle Charging $600.00 $562.37 $91.48 $56.96 $310.81 $56.96 0.0% ($289.19)
  Meeting Room Rental Fees $10,000.00 $8,906.25 $131.25 $137.50 $15,488.50 $4,256.25 154.9% $5,488.50

4000 Interest $300,000.00 $332,469.88 $45,585.07 $9,734.31 $260,311.79 $31,788.23 86.8% ($39,688.21)
5500 Services Provided Other Entities $5,000.00 $6,006.00 $129.00 $17.00 $4,132.35 $5,116.00 82.6% ($867.65)
6100 Restricted Gifts $0.00 $149,414.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,654.22 0.0% $0.00
6500 Unrestricted Gifts $100,000.00 $1,158.04 $873.00 $0.00 $11,342.33 $226.49 11.3% ($88,657.67)
8100 Sale of Property $25,000.00 $21,432.77 $0.00 $2,802.77 $7,543.23 $2,922.77 30.2% ($17,456.77)
8200 Sale of Resale Supplies $87,220.00 $83,754.94 $7,483.63 $6,911.62 $51,794.98 $37,517.18 59.4% ($35,425.02)
8300 Rental of Real Property $23,110.00 $21,180.50 $1,925.50 $1,925.50 $9,627.50 $9,627.50 0.0% ($13,482.50)
8700 Refunds and Reimbursements $152,670.00 $233,593.94 $13,017.32 $1,982.69 $64,745.11 $15,881.05 42.4% ($87,924.89)
8900 Miscellaneous $12,000.00 $18,620.39 $97.00 $10,173.32 $5,280.24 $12,709.65 44.0% ($6,719.76)
9800 Advances In $45,540.85 $146,396.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% ($45,540.85)
9900 Transfers In $0.00 $68,881.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $653.47 0.0% $0.00

Carryover $500,000.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $500,000.00 100.0% $0.00

TOTAL -- General Fund $90,833,611.60 $91,814,913.89 $2,675,312.45 $2,421,190.47 $49,571,748.79 $48,357,560.47 54.6% ($41,261,862.81)

TOTAL -- Capital Fund - 402 $750,000.00 $19,514,789.94 $353,728.61 $17,555.99 $1,132,837.31 $613,604.26 151.0% $382,837.31
TOTAL -- Note Retirement Fund - 301 $4,497,008.77 $4,481,224.54 $17,617.83 $0.00 $4,517,463.64 $4,449,855.85 100.5% $20,454.87
TOTAL -- Trust Fund (Regular) - 701 $25,000.00 $102,194.12 $8,478.33 $5,543.02 $44,887.75 $50,855.80 179.6% $19,887.75
TOTAL -- Trust Fund (Special) - 702 $65,000.00 $69,759.16 $6,131.99 $1,310.90 $36,978.33 $49,619.89 56.9% ($28,021.67)
TOTAL -- Endowment Fund - 801 $250.00 $326.63 $77.23 $18.23 $434.08 $46.10 173.6% $184.08
TOTAL -- Agency Fund (FSA) - 901 $80,000.00 $86,002.50 $8,623.05 $7,151.42 $52,107.38 $43,169.78 65.1% ($27,892.62)
TOTAL -- Libraries Accelerated Learning - 222 $428,157.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,846.43 $0.00 13.0% ($372,311.13)
TOTAL -- Project Build - 223 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- My Com Neighborhood - 242 $0.00 $32,499.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,499.67 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- Memory Lab Grant - 243 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- WVH Garden Grant - 244 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- Adult Education Services - 247 $2,440,264.62 $1,670,824.11 $71,385.32 $120,923.71 $721,839.18 $722,051.29 29.6% ($1,718,425.44)
TOTAL -- Family Engagement - 249 $272,152.00 $147,299.05 $216.76 $20,000.00 $58,298.10 $52,000.00 21.4% ($213,853.90)
TOTAL -- IPAD Lab - 253 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- Food & Culinary Literacy Program $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- Hotspot Lending Program $120,000.00 $255,170.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00 0.0% ($120,000.00)
TOTAL --Digital Literacy- 265 $440,404.00 $91,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,250.00 $33,250.00 0.0% ($407,154.00)
TOTAL --OH EPA Charging Station- 266 $0.00 $26,806.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL --SLN Innovaton Center- 267 $850,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 0.0% ($600,000.00)
TOTAL -- Student Success - 270 $570,617.25 $211,726.90 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $65,000.00 13.1% ($495,617.25)
TOTAL -- Summer Camps - 280 $0.00 $98,946.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $39,500.00 0.0% $0.00
TOTAL -- Special School Program. - 293 $39,297.25 $118,567.15 $35.00 $10,000.00 $15,874.84 $42,962.63 40.4% ($23,422.41)

GRAND TOTAL -- All Funds $101,413,763.05 $118,724,049.94 $3,141,606.57 $2,608,693.74 $56,568,565.83 $54,678,975.74 55.8% ($44,845,197.22)

37



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
BUDGET EXPENDITURE STATUS
Fiscal 2023  June 50% of Year

Acct. General Fund 2023 2022 C/O 2022 Final 2023 MTD 2022 MTD 2023 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 Enc + 2023 2023% 2023
No. Line Item Description Appropriation Encumbrance Expended Expended Expended Expended Expended PY Enc Exp+Enc Exp+Enc Balance

1000s SALARIES & BENEFITS 46.6%
1110 Salaries $30,800,000.00 $0.00 $29,339,850.22 $2,372,955.50 $2,234,923.88 $15,525,146.27 $14,497,061.96 $0.00 $15,525,146.27 50.4% $15,274,853.73
1400 Retirement Benefits-Employer $4,311,302.00 $0.00 $4,101,309.03 $325,658.81 $311,782.85 $2,172,172.65 $2,042,608.57 $0.00 $2,172,172.65 50.4% $2,139,129.35
1600 Insurance Benefits-Employer $7,116,260.00 $0.00 $6,597,211.16 $502,702.34 $517,023.82 $3,446,856.32 $3,519,160.15 $0.00 $3,446,856.32 48.4% $3,669,403.68
1900 Other Employee Benefits $72,438.00 $0.00 $23,378.67 $20,725.87 $342.99 $44,531.06 $4,836.57 $0.00 $44,531.06 61.5% $27,906.94

SUBTOTAL -- SALARIES & BENEFITS $42,300,000.00 $0.00 $40,061,749.08 $3,222,042.52 $3,064,073.54 $21,188,706.30 $20,063,667.25 $0.00 $21,188,706.30 50.1% $21,111,293.70

2000s SUPPLIES 1.7%
2100 General Administrative Supplies $918,950.00 $69,065.15 $769,369.23 $41,245.65 $58,957.54 $440,851.12 $310,419.11 $255,827.66 $696,678.78 70.5% $291,336.37
2200 Property Maintenance & Repair Supplies $435,805.00 $1,958.38 $327,216.72 $19,377.60 $16,675.28 $172,235.90 $167,747.78 $265,008.07 $437,243.97 99.9% $519.41
2300 Motor Equipment Fuel & Supplies $103,180.00 $700.00 $88,557.77 $6,346.67 $8,560.60 $46,045.64 $46,028.41 $57,673.24 $103,718.88 99.8% $161.12
2500 Supplies for Resale $60,065.00 $0.00 $60,065.00 $0.00 $4,640.00 $19,875.00 $24,330.00 $30,125.00 $50,000.00 83.2% $10,065.00

SUBTOTAL -- SUPPLIES $1,518,000.00 $71,723.53 $1,245,208.72 $66,969.92 $88,833.42 $679,007.66 $548,525.30 $608,633.97 $1,287,641.63 81.0% $302,081.90

3000s PURCHASED & CONTRACTED SERVICES 17.1%
3100 Travel & Meeting Expenses $180,185.00 $0.00 $122,327.10 $8,121.07 $5,027.75 $35,618.55 $33,229.22 $0.00 $35,618.55 19.8% $144,566.45
3200 Communications-Printing & Publications $1,313,315.00 $0.00 $1,398,864.02 $66,956.83 $146,724.46 $679,172.65 $674,760.32 $428,289.46 $1,107,462.11 84.3% $205,852.89
3300 Property Maintenance & Repair Service $5,368,587.00 $428,508.76 $5,785,426.62 $394,286.58 $602,941.75 $2,681,269.96 $2,264,285.95 $2,501,097.66 $5,182,367.62 89.4% $614,728.14
3400 Insurance $377,300.00 $0.00 $362,738.44 $0.00 $0.00 $64,590.00 $59,071.00 $312,710.00 $377,300.00 100.0% $0.00
3500 Rents and Leases $1,179,785.00 $24,500.00 $612,860.85 $50,358.37 $60,480.51 $520,227.74 $334,620.02 $682,703.18 $1,202,930.92 99.9% $1,354.08
3600 Utilities $1,697,025.00 $0.00 $1,425,946.05 $106,964.74 $102,161.14 $737,368.03 $717,692.51 $0.00 $737,368.03 43.5% $959,656.97
3700 Professional Services $2,654,042.00 $495,427.17 $3,067,294.75 $131,712.31 $170,515.00 $1,550,845.50 $1,257,053.34 $1,596,913.79 $3,147,759.29 99.9% $1,709.88
3900 Other Contracted Services $2,754,761.00 $274,025.00 $2,058,335.57 $70,999.53 $110,228.57 $1,662,086.79 $1,286,677.74 $1,360,619.36 $3,022,706.15 99.8% $6,079.85

SUBTOTAL -- CONTRACTED SERVICES $15,525,000.00 $1,222,460.93 $14,833,793.40 $829,399.43 $1,198,079.18 $7,931,179.22 $6,627,390.10 $6,882,333.45 $14,813,512.67 88.5% $1,933,948.26

4000s LIBRARY MATERIALS & INFORMATION 11.0%
4100 Books & Pamphlets $6,774,000.00 $346,645.84 $7,552,274.61 $649,602.75 $759,358.81 $4,092,131.29 $4,051,021.84 $817,542.26 $4,909,673.55 68.9% $2,210,972.29
4200 Periodicals $160,000.00 $0.00 $175,194.91 $462.25 $1,965.83 $15,004.25 $5,340.73 $134.73 $15,138.98 9.5% $144,861.02
4300 Audiovisual Material $1,729,000.00 $150,781.82 $1,038,259.67 $111,621.49 $93,061.05 $602,185.41 $542,166.49 $166,044.63 $768,230.04 40.9% $1,111,551.78
4500 Computer Services & Information $1,300,000.00 $0.00 $1,226,758.65 $127,881.13 $44,471.69 $599,511.24 $629,190.11 $1,297.36 $600,808.60 46.2% $699,191.40
4700 Library Material Repair & Restoration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
4900 Library Materials-Other $37,000.00 $7,010.00 $55,585.45 $2,995.97 $6,080.33 $26,199.84 $20,782.01 $5,563.96 $31,763.80 72.2% $12,246.20

SUBTOTAL -- LIBRARY MATERIALS $10,000,000.00 $504,437.66 $10,048,073.29 $892,563.59 $904,937.71 $5,335,032.03 $5,248,501.18 $990,582.94 $6,325,614.97 60.2% $4,178,822.69

5000s CAPITAL OUTLAY 7.0%
5100 Purchase of Land $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
5400 Building Improvements $1,552,280.00 $49,627.00 $218,285.88 $595,038.55 $0.00 $628,717.55 $5,500.00 $917,553.45 $1,546,271.00 96.5% $55,636.00
5500 Furniture & Equipment $4,547,280.00 $1,219,564.42 $1,279,607.57 $323,331.78 $157,097.35 $843,815.12 $623,372.58 $2,554,164.68 $3,397,979.80 58.9% $2,368,864.62
5700 Motor Vehicles $251,940.00 $38,085.00 $63,706.05 $68,470.00 $0.00 $193,472.20 $45,002.00 $57,925.00 $251,397.20 0.0% $38,627.80

SUBTOTAL -- CAPITAL OUTLAY $6,351,500.00 $1,307,276.42 $1,561,599.50 $986,840.33 $157,097.35 $1,666,004.87 $673,874.58 $3,529,643.13 $5,195,648.00 67.8% $2,463,128.42

7000s OTHER OBJECTS 0.1%
7100 Dues and Memberships $66,450.00 $0.00 $67,547.92 $1,678.00 $451.00 $45,723.03 $48,566.92 $19,600.00 $65,323.03 98.3% $1,126.97
7200 Taxes and Assessments $31,945.00 $0.00 $29,889.54 $2,021.87 $1,486.27 $20,329.37 $14,278.77 $0.00 $20,329.37 63.6% $11,615.63
7500 Refunds and Reimbursements $3,810.00 $0.00 $3,347.95 $1,335.36 $123.30 $3,611.82 $1,878.71 $0.00 $3,611.82 94.8% $198.18
7900 Other Miscellaneous Expenses $3,295.00 $2,000.00 $2,607.71 $1,700.00 $62.43 $4,747.49 $1,110.64 $300.00 $5,047.49 95.3% $247.51

SUBTOTAL -- OTHER OBJECTS $105,500.00 $2,000.00 $103,393.12 $6,735.23 $2,123.00 $74,411.71 $65,835.04 $19,900.00 $94,311.71 87.7% $13,188.29

8000s CONTINGENCY 0.1%
8999 Contingency $133,611.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $133,611.60

SUBTOTAL -- CONTINGENCY $133,611.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $133,611.60

9000s TRANSFERS OUT 16.4%
9899 Advances to Other Funds $0.00 $0.00 $45,540.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
9999 Transfers to Other Funds $14,900,000.00 $0.00 $23,457,520.92 $57,560.00 $59,794.42 $4,582,090.33 $4,606,569.71 $0.00 $4,582,090.33 30.8% $10,317,909.67

SUBTOTAL -- TRANSFERS OUT $14,900,000.00 $0.00 $23,503,061.77 $57,560.00 $59,794.42 $4,582,090.33 $4,606,569.71 $0.00 $4,582,090.33 30.8% $10,317,909.67

GRAND TOTAL -- General Fund $90,833,611.60 $3,107,898.54 $91,356,878.88 $6,062,111.02 $5,474,938.62 $41,456,432.12 $37,834,363.16 $12,031,093.49 $53,487,525.61 56.9% $40,453,984.53

38



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
BUDGET EXPENDITURE STATUS
Fiscal 2023  June 50% of Year

FUND Line Item Description
2023 

Appropriation
2022 C/O 

Encumbrance
2022 Final 
Expended

2023 MTD 
Expended

2022 MTD 
Expended

2023 YTD 
Expended 

2022 YTD 
Expended

2023 ENC + 
PY Enc

2023 
Exp+Enc

2023 % 
Exp+Enc 2023 Balance

222 TOTAL -- Libaries Accelerated Learning $428,157.56 $0.00 $0.00 $23,021.66 $0.00 $108,396.63 $0.00 $62,737.33 $171,133.96 40.0% $257,023.60
223 TOTAL -- Project Build $25,622.89 $0.00 $14,990.20 $0.00 $0.00 $139.38 $14,965.50 $0.00 $139.38 0.5% $25,483.51
242 TOTAL -- MyCom Neighborhood $1,154.61 $0.00 $80,351.51 $0.00 $0.00 $1,154.61 $80,351.51 $0.00 $1,154.61 0.0% $0.00
244 TOTAL -- WVH Garden Grant $3,075.86 $0.00 $1,970.81 $0.00 $847.61 $0.00 $1,047.32 $250.00 $250.00 8.1% $2,825.86
247 TOTAL -- Adult Education Services $2,704,162.75 $0.00 $1,599,840.58 $200,586.29 $190,121.44 $887,551.11 $795,385.85 $26,369.90 $913,921.01 33.8% $1,790,241.74
249 TOTAL -- Family Engagement $309,066.50 $0.00 $165,384.55 $17,567.94 $20,921.95 $99,248.42 $59,098.56 $60,496.42 $159,744.84 0.0% $149,321.66
253 TOTAL -- IPAD Lab $0.00 $0.00 $33.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
256 TOTAL -- Food & Culinary Literacy Programs $32,001.35 $0.00 $1,064.08 $561.67 $0.00 $3,498.61 $0.00 $0.00 $3,498.61 10.9% $28,502.74
257 TOTAL -- Hotspot Lending Program $130,170.28 $0.00 $245,000.00 $8,750.00 $29,960.78 $56,575.33 $58,580.38 $33,424.67 $90,000.00 69.1% $40,170.28
265 TOTAL --Digital Literacy $542,212.65 $0.00 $222,668.71 $7,879.00 $31,476.75 $50,175.68 $167,392.11 $0.00 $50,175.68 9.3% $492,036.97
266 TOTAL --OH EPA Charging Station Grant $0.00 $0.00 $26,806.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,930.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $0.00
267 TOTAL -- SLN Innovation Center $850,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,435.00 $0.00 $6,435.00 $0.00 $318,815.00 $325,250.00 $524,750.00
270 TOTAL -- Student Success $571,117.25 $0.00 $215,204.29 $6,217.12 $7,460.80 $163,827.86 $116,936.24 $0.00 $163,827.86 28.7% $407,289.39
280 TOTAL -- Summer Camps $61,067.82 $0.00 $37,878.18 $25,868.03 $6,770.88 $33,583.16 $29,957.68 $18,705.73 $52,288.89 0.0% $8,778.93
293 TOTAL -- Special School Programming $39,297.25 $0.00 $182,764.37 $1,876.18 $18,604.00 $10,336.18 $79,302.47 $1,104.77 $11,440.95 29.1% $27,856.30
301 TOTAL -- Note Retirement Fund $4,527,878.00 $0.00 $4,498,249.46 $500.00 $500.00 $456,689.33 $511,874.73 $0.00 $456,689.33 10.1% $4,071,188.67
402 TOTAL -- Capital Fund $10,000,000.00 $1,568,874.76 $4,789,536.46 $241,037.19 $833,690.73 $1,297,791.03 $3,070,200.62 $658,396.99 $1,956,188.02 16.9% $9,612,686.74
701 TOTAL -- Trust Fund (Regular) $140,000.00 $2,352.98 $324,591.31 $28,942.75 $7,538.55 $56,859.66 $257,878.74 $13,915.24 $70,774.90 49.7% $71,578.08
702 TOTAL -- Trust Fund (Special) $850,000.00 $0.00 $158,969.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $138,982.76 $0.00 $0.00 0.0% $850,000.00
801 TOTAL -- Endowment Fund $2,500.00 $322.19 $2,094.09 $191.73 $10.50 $1,628.72 $1,017.12 $720.02 $2,348.74 83.2% $473.45
901 TOTAL -- Agency Fund (FSA) $100,000.00 $0.00 $117,085.27 $5,879.73 $8,393.05 $58,916.00 $44,330.52 $0.00 $58,916.00 58.9% $41,084.00

GRAND TOTAL -- All Funds $21,317,484.77 $1,571,549.93 $12,684,482.70 $575,314.29 $1,156,297.04 $3,292,806.71 $5,443,232.11 $1,194,936.07 $4,487,742.78 19.6% $18,401,291.92

39



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
Capital Fund Balances
Fiscal 2023 -June

Project 2023 Expenditures Encumbered Project STATUS
FUND CC Budget Expenditures To Date (1) & Unpaid (2) Balance (3)

Capital Fund - 402
Beachwood 007 $21,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,666.00 $20,993,334.00
Brecksville 013 $800,000.00 $26,317.69 $33,027.69 $9,943.42 $757,028.89
Brooklyn 019 $17,662,550.00 $693,441.41 $999,814.18 $379,106.32 $16,283,629.50
North Olmsted 046 $382,000.00 $241,676.66 $281,617.72 $61,755.34 $38,626.94
Parma Heights 061 $11,500,000.00 $3,942.75 $3,942.75 $38,724.25 $11,457,333.00
Solon 073 $4,793,000.00 $320.00 $320.00 $31,347.00 $4,761,333.00

Total Capital Fund - 402 $56,137,550.00 $965,698.51 $1,318,722.34 $520,876.33 $33,297,951.33

40



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
All Funds Cash Balance
Fiscal 2023 --June

Beginning Receipts Expenditures Cash
Fund Cash Balance To Date To Date Balance

General Fund $3,607,898.54 $49,071,748.79 $41,456,432.12 $11,223,215.21
Debt Service $30,869.23 $4,517,463.64 $456,689.33 $4,091,643.54
Capital Fund - 402 $48,515,463.59 $1,132,837.31 $1,297,791.03 $48,350,509.87
Trust Fund - Regular $271,514.37 $44,887.75 $56,859.66 $259,542.46
Trust Fund - Special $1,389,245.20 $36,978.33 $0.00 $1,426,223.53
Endowment Fund $17,503.65 $434.08 $1,628.72 $16,309.01
Agency Fund $21,199.57 $52,107.38 $58,916.00 $14,390.95
Libraries Accelerated Learning $0.00 $55,846.43 $108,396.63 ($52,550.20)
Project Build $25,622.89 $0.00 $139.38 $25,483.51
Keybank FNDTH College Prep/Entrepreneurship $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
MyCom Neighborhood $1,154.61 $0.00 $1,154.61 ($0.00)
Memory Lab Grant $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
WVH Garden Grant $1,075.86 $2,000.00 $0.00 $3,075.86
Adult Education Services (AES) $263,898.13 $721,839.18 $887,551.11 $98,186.20
Family Engagement $36,914.50 $58,298.10 $99,248.42 ($4,035.82)
IPAD Lab ($0.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($0.00)
Food & Culinary Literacy Programs $32,001.35 $0.00 $3,498.61 $28,502.74
Hotspot Lending Program $10,170.28 $0.00 $56,575.33 ($46,405.05)
Digital Literacy $101,808.65 $33,250.00 $50,175.68 $84,882.97
SLN Innovation Center $0.00 $250,000.00 $6,435.00 $243,565.00
Student Success $500.00 $75,000.00 $163,827.86 ($88,327.86)
Summer Camps $61,067.82 $0.00 $33,583.16 $27,484.66
Kindergarten and Baby Kits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Special School Programming $0.00 $15,874.84 $10,336.18 $5,538.66

SUBTOTAL $54,387,908.24 $56,068,565.83 $44,749,238.83 $65,707,235.24

41



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
Investments Approval
Fiscal 2023 - June

Institution Purchase Purchase Maturity
Description of Deposit Par Value/Qty. Yield Date Date % of Assets

Money Market Funds
Sweep Account Key Bank $5,671,112.77 0.40% n/a n/a 8.47%
Money Market Fund Northwest Bank $0.00 0.00% n/a n/a 0.00%
Money Market Fund US Bank $1,343,525.12 4.99% n/a n/a 2.01%
Money Market Fund Fifth Third $273,771.77 4.93% n/a n/a 0.41%
ICS Account TriState Capital $0.00 0.00% n/a n/a 0.00%

Star Ohio Accounts
Star Ohio Accounts Star Ohio $27,420,192.89 5.26% n/a n/a 40.97%

US Treasury Notes
US Treasury Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $570,000.00 0.42% June 30, 2021 April 15, 2024 0.85%
US Treasury Morgan Stanley & Co LLC $550,000.00 3.45% August 31, 2022 August 31, 2024 0.82%

US Treasury Bills

Municipal Bonds
City of Columbus, OH BofA Securities, Inc. $500,000.00 2.96% May 17, 2022 April 1, 2025 0.75%

Commercial Paper
Toronto Dominion Bank BofA Securities, Inc. $500,000.00 4.88% October 11, 2022 July 7, 2023 0.75%
Mufg Bank Ltd NY BRA Usbna/Cp $500,000.00 5.24% October 19, 2022 July 14, 2023 0.75%
Natixis NY Dbtc Americas $500,000.00 5.38% November 3, 2022 July 5, 2023 0.75%
Bank Amer Secs Inc Disc BofA Securities, Inc. $250,000.00 5.46% November 7, 2022 August 2, 2023 0.37%
Natixis NY Dbtc Americas $250,000.00 5.38% November 14, 2022 August 7, 2023 0.37%
Citigroup Global Mkts Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $270,000.00 5.51% November 28, 2022 August 22, 2023 0.40%
Citigroup Global Mkts Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $500,000.00 5.51% December 5, 2022 August 30, 2023 0.75%
BofA Securities Inc BofA Securities, Inc. $400,000.00 5.15% January 12, 2023 August 15, 2023 0.60%
Lymh Moet Hennessy Mizuho Securities USA Fxd Inc $715,000.00 5.02% January 12, 2023 July 11, 2023 1.07%
National Bk Cda Disc JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,800,000.00 4.99% January 20, 2023 July 19, 2023 2.69%
Natixis NY Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $1,200,000.00 5.15% January 20, 2023 October 6, 2023 1.79%
Ing US Fdg LLC JP Morgan Securities LLC $2,000,000.00 5.08% January 25, 2023 August 22, 2023 2.99%
Mufg Bk NY Brh Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $600,000.00 5.03% January 27, 2023 July 20, 2023 0.90%
Mufg Bk NY Brh Usbna/Cp $300,000.00 5.38% February 21, 2023 November 14, 2023 0.45%
Natixis NY Dbtc Americas $300,000.00 5.40% February 21, 2023 November 17, 2023 0.45%
Toyota Mtr Cr Corp Citibank $250,000.00 5.44% February 22, 2023 November 17, 2023 0.37%
Ing US Fdg LLC Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $600,000.00 5.20% February 24, 2023 August 22, 2023 0.90%
Toronto Dominion Bank Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $600,000.00 5.41% February 27, 2023 November 24, 2023 0.90%
Royal Bk Cda Ny Rbc Capital Markets LLC $300,000.00 5.12% March 13, 2023 July 14, 2023 0.45%
Lymh Moet Hennessy JP Morgan Securities LLC $250,000.00 5.10% March 15, 2023 August 10, 2023 0.37%
Canadian Imperial Bk JP Morgan Securities LLC $260,000.00 5.21% March 24, 2023 November 1, 2023 0.39%
Bank of Montreal M Bny Capital Markets Inc $425,000.00 5.24% March 29, 2023 October 10, 2023 0.63%
Bank Montreal Disc Coml Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $250,000.00 5.41% April 13, 2023 January 4, 2024 0.37%
Bank Montreal Disc Coml JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,000,000.00 5.27% May 2, 2023 August 7, 2023 1.49%
Toronto Dominion Bank Td Securities (USA) $660,000.00 5.31% May 9, 2023 February 2, 2024 0.99%
Mufg Bk Ltd NY JP Morgan Securities LLC $400,000.00 5.41% May 15, 2023 November 10, 2023 0.60%
Toronto Dominion Bank JP Morgan Securities LLC $290,000.00 5.44% May 22, 2023 October 23, 2023 0.43%
Mizuho Bk Ltd New York Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $410,000.00 5.53% June 12, 2023 September 22, 2023 0.61%
JP Morgan Secs LLC JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,500,000.00 5.79% June 30, 2023 March 25, 2024 2.24%
Royal Bk Cda Ny JP Morgan Securities LLC $1,500,000.00 5.79% June 30, 2023 February 29, 2024 2.24%
Mufg Bk Ltd Ny Brh Usbna/Cp $500,000.00 5.51% June 30, 2023 September 29, 2023 0.75%
Natixis NY Dbtc Americas $500,000.00 5.92% June 30, 2023 March 26, 2024 0.75%

Certificate of Deposit
Certificate of Deposit Bankwell Bk  New $249,000.00 0.49% July 6, 2020 July 6, 2023 0.37%
Certificate of Deposit John Marshall Bank $89,000.00 2.30% June 17, 2022 October 17, 2023 0.13%
Certificate of Deposit Goldman Sachs Bank, USA $246,000.00 2.50% June 15, 2022 December 15, 2023 0.37%
Certificate of Deposit Capital One Bank (USA) National Assoc $246,000.00 2.85% June 15, 2022 June 17, 2024 0.37%
Certificate of Deposit The Dart Bank $250,000.00 3.10% June 21, 2022 December 22, 2025 0.37%
Certificate of Deposit Bangor Svgs Bk $244,000.00 4.85% November 23, 2022 May 23, 2024 0.36%
Certificate of Deposit Multi-Bank Securities Inc $244,000.00 4.55% April 19, 2023 April 20, 2026 0.36%
Certificate of Deposit Multi-Bank Securities Inc $249,000.00 4.80% April 20, 2023 July 22, 2024 0.37%

Agency Securities
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Keybanc Capital Markets, Inc. $305,000.00 0.57% September 30, 2020 September 24, 2025 0.46%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $300,000.00 0.27% October 8, 2020 August 24, 2023 0.45%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Intl Fcstone Financial Inc $250,000.00 0.50% October 29, 2020 January 27, 2025 0.37%
Federa Farm Credit Bank JP Morgan Securities LLC $250,000.00 0.40% November 19, 2020 May 16, 2024 0.37%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Multi-Bank Securities Inc. $390,000.00 0.25% December 4, 2020 December 4, 2023 0.58%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $500,000.00 0.27% January 22, 2021 March 28, 2024 0.75%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Intl Fcstone Financial Inc $500,000.00 0.65% January 28, 2021 January 28, 2026 0.75%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Mizuho Securities USA Inc. $500,000.00 0.22% February 12, 2021 February 12, 2024 0.75%

42



Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Keybanc Capital Markets, Inc. $300,000.00 0.65% February 26, 2021 February 26, 2026 0.45%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Rbc Capital Markets, LLC $390,000.00 1.00% March 23, 2021 March 23, 2026 0.58%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Rbc Capital Markets, LLC $240,000.00 0.50% May 27, 2021 August 27, 2024 0.36%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Toronto Dominion Securities $250,000.00 0.63% May 28, 2021 November 27, 2024 0.37%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $140,000.00 0.33% July 29, 2021 December 29, 2023 0.21%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Great Pacific Securities $255,000.00 1.10% August 30, 2021 August 24, 2026 0.38%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Baird, Robert W. & Company In $200,000.00 0.60% October 8, 2021 January 7, 2025 0.30%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Stonex Financial Inc $150,000.00 1.50% February 28, 2022 February 23, 2024 0.22%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Amherst Pierpont Securities $250,000.00 3.37% May 26, 2022 May 26, 2026 0.37%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company First Tennessee Bank $205,000.00 3.12% May 27, 2022 May 23, 2025 0.31%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Stonex Financial Inc $250,000.00 3.96% August 17, 2022 August 17, 2026 0.37%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $250,000.00 3.35% August 17, 2022 March 8, 2024 0.37%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Wells Fargo Securities, LLC $500,000.00 3.29% August 24, 2022 August 24, 2026 0.75%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Stonex Financial Inc $120,000.00 5.00% October 18, 2022 October 18, 2027 0.18%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company BofA Securities Inc/FXD Inc $265,000.00 5.00% October 20, 2022 October 20, 2025 0.40%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company JP Morgan Securities LLC $300,000.00 4.79% November 2, 2022 March 8, 2024 0.45%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Morgan Stanley & Co LLC $250,000.00 5.37% March 8, 2023 September 13, 2024 0.37%

US Government Agency Discount Notes
Federal Home Loan Bank BofA Securities Inc $1,000,000.00 5.02% February 9, 2023 December 1, 2023 1.49%
Federal Home Loan Bank Mizuho Securities USA Fxd Inc $700,000.00 5.08% February 28, 2023 August 25, 2023 1.05%

TOTAL PORTFOLIO $66,935,602.55 100.00%

43



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
Purchase Approval List

Item Quantity Description Supplier Unit Cost Total Amount

ENCUMBRANCE INCREASES

1 Asset packets for Freshservice software

SUMMARY: Necessary to increase amount from $26,770 to $29,996 due to

adding inventory functions to Help Desk software.

As requested by the Information Technologies Division. Freshworks $3,226.00

2 Emergency plumbing & construction work

SUMMARY: Necessary to increase Blanket PO from $24,000 to $39,000 due to an

increase in emergency repairs system wide. Rick's

As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Roofing & Remodeling $15,000.00

3 Office Supplies

SUMMARY: Necessary to increase Blanket PO from $50,000 to $85,500 due to

increase in supply use system wide.

As requested by the Operations-Finance Division. WB Mason Company $35,500.00

4 Passport photo supplies

SUMMARY: Necessary to increase Blanket PO from $14,660 to $20,660 due to

increase in photo services system wide.

As requested by the Operations-Finance Division. Pakor Inc $6,000.00

NEW PURCHASES

5 Exterior and Interior signage

SUMMARY: Necessary to replace signs at Strongsville branch to conform

to signage standards and improve wayfinding.

As requested by the Communications and External Relations Division. ASI Signage $78,518.00

6 Outdoor electronic message board 

July 25, 2023

44



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
Purchase Approval List

Item Quantity Description Supplier Unit Cost Total Amount

July 25, 2023

SUMMARY: Necessary to replace & upgrade exterior sign at Olmsted Falls branch.

As requested by the Communications and External Relations Division. ASI Signage $53,296.00

7 Yearly lease of 12 HP laptops, Year 1 of 4

SUMMARY: Necessary for new computer equipment for Student Success Centers

at Fairview Park & Mayfield branches.

Four year lease has a total amount not-to-exceed $18,269. Hewlett Packard

As requested by the Information Technologies Division. Financial Services $4,094.00

8 Public Computer buyout

SUMMARY: Necessary to purchase computer equipment at end of lease. Hewlett Packard

As requested by the Information Technologies Division. Financial Services $23,812.00

9 Carpet replacement 

SUMMARY: Necessary to recarpet North Olmsted branch.

Includes 5% contingency amount. As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Northern Flooring $213,475.00

10 Carpet replacement 

SUMMARY: Necessary for carpet replacement at Fairview Park branch.

Includes 5% contingency amount. As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Northern Flooring $100,507.00

11 Roof ladders & landings

SUMMARY: Necessary to install safety features at Warrensville Hts branch. City Wide

As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Facility Solutions $23,706.00

12 Furniture package

45



CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
Purchase Approval List

Item Quantity Description Supplier Unit Cost Total Amount

July 25, 2023

SUMMARY: Necessary for new furniture throughout Bedford branch. Contract

As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Source Inc $47,562.00

13 Generator upgrade engineering fee

SUMMARY: Necessary to replace & upgrade generator at Maple Hts branch.

As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Wright Engineering $17,000.00

14 Furniture package

SUMMARY: Necessary for new furniture throughout Fairview Park branch. Environments

As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. 4 Business LLC $162,923.00

15 Green room furniture package

SUMMARY: Necessary for new Presenter Lounge furniture for Parma-Snow Environments

& Administration auditoriums. As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. 4 Business LLC $22,720.00

16 Database clean up

SUMMARY: Necessary to review & clean up data to prepare for migration to new

Koha software. As requested by the Technical Services Division. Marcive Inc $25,445.00

CAPITAL FUND NEW PURCHASES
17 Children's Area professional services

SUMMARY: Necessary for designs of Children's area for new Brooklyn Branch.
As requested by the Operations-Facilities Division. Luci Creative LLC $436,500.00

46



Gift Report June 1‐30, 2023
Gift Amount Donor Recipient  Purpose 

$1,500.00 Bay Village Early Childhood PTA Branch Trust Fund Bay Village Play Space
$2,012.20 Friends of the Bay Village Library Branch Trust Fund Bay Village Programming and Supplies

$54.46 Friends of the Bedford Library Branch Trust Fund Bedford Programming
$325.69 Friends of the Berea Library Branch Trust Fund Berea Programming and Supplies
$175.87 Friends of the Brecksville Library Branch Trust Fund Brecksville Programming
$246.86 Friends of the Brook Park Library Branch Trust Fund Brook Park Programming
$906.49 Friends of the Brooklyn Library Branch Trust Fund Brooklyn Programming and Supplies
$496.31 Friends of the Chagrin Falls Library Branch Trust Fund Chagrin Falls Programming and Supplies
$557.32 Friends of the Gates Mills Library Branch Trust Fund Gates Mills Programming and Supplies
$621.94 Friends of the Independence Library Branch Trust Fund Independence Programming
$665.38 Friends of the Maple Heights Library Branch Trust Fund Maple Heights Programming and Supplies
$429.28 Friends of the North Olmsted Library Branch Trust Fund North Olmsted Programming, Supplies, and Garden Maintenance
$248.14 Friends of the North Royalton Library Branch Trust Fund North Royalton Programming, Supplies, and Presenter Fees
$157.38 Friends of the Olmsted Falls Library Branch Trust Fund Olmsted Falls Programming and Supplies
$467.59 Friends of the Orange Library Branch Trust Fund Orange Programming, Supplies and Presenter Fees

$5,912.80 Friends of the Orange Library Branch Trust Fund Orange Garden Stakes and Permanent StoryWalk signs
$702.78 Friends of the Parma Heights Library Branch Trust Fund Parma Heights Supplies and Presenter Fees
$783.59 Friends of the Solon Library Branch Trust Fund Solon Programming and Supplies
$432.88 Friends of the South Euclid‐Lyndhurst Library Branch Trust Fund South Euclid‐LyndhurstSupplies
$100.00 Kirk J. Metzger Branch Trust Fund Solon IMO Nancy Brian
$100.00 Lynne Powers Branch Trust Fund Solon IMO Nancy Kline Brian

$15,000.00 OCCH Ohio Capital Impact Corporation CCPL CCPL
$1,000.00 Patricia A. Shlonsky CCPL IMO Dale Powers
$100.00 William Morrisey Branch Trust Fund Brecksville IMO Tom Claire

47



This page intentionally left blank.

48



BCH-Design 
Resolution to Negotiate 
07/25/2023 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
RESOLUTION TO NEGOTIATE AN AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE NEW CONSTRUCTION OF THE BEACHWOOD BRANCH LIBRARY 

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Public Library is a county library district 
and political subdivision of the State of Ohio organized under the Ohio Revised 
Code and this Board is a body politic organized and acting pursuant to relevant 
provisions of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC), including Sections 3375.22 and 
3375.40 of the ORC; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined that it is in the best 
interest of the Library and the residents it serves to build a new library in the city 
of Beachwood; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees previously authorized the Chief 
Executive Officer, or designee, to advertise for proposals from professional 
architectural firms for design services for the new construction of the Beachwood 
Brach in accordance with the Request for Qualifications; and,  

WHEREAS, the Library staff has ranked three (4) design firms under 
consideration for this work in accordance with the procedures and policies set 
forth in Chapter 153, ORC; and,  

WHEREAS, this Board has determined that it is in the interest of the 
Library to proceed with negotiating a design services agreement for the new 
construction of the Beachwood Branch. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, STATE OF OHIO, THAT: 

Section 1 
The Board of Trustees has been advised that the rank of the four (4) design firms 
under consideration for this work is as follows: 

1. CBLH/Group 4
2. Bialosky Cleveland
3. HBM Architecture
4. Moody Nolan

49



BCH-Design 
Resolution to Negotiate 
07/25/2023 

Section 2 
That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the ranking and authorizes the Chief 
Executive Officer, or designee, to negotiate a contract for design services 
following the procedures set forth in Chapter 153, ORC, wherein the Chief 
Executive Officer, or designee, will attempt to negotiate an agreement with the 
top ranked consultant, proceeding next to the second ranked consultant if an 
agreement is unable to be reached with the first ranked consultant. 

Section 3 
That upon negotiation of an agreement with the ranked consultant, in accordance 
with the procedures set forth in Chapter 153, ORC, the Chief Executive Officer 
will present that negotiated agreement to the Board of Trustees for final approval. 

Section 4 
It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and 
relating to this legislation were adopted in an open meeting of this Board and that 
all deliberations of this Board or any of its committees that resulted in this formal 
action were meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including relevant provisions of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC). 

Approved July 25, 2023 

X 
Dean E. DePiero, President 

X 
Maria L. Spangler, Secretary 

50



BCH 
Resolution to Advertise 
RFQ CMAR Services 
07/25/2023 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
A RESOLUTION SEEKING PERMISSION TO ADVERTISE FOR A REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AT RISK SERVICES FOR 
THE NEW LIBRARY BRANCH IN THE CITY OF BEACHWOOD 

Whereas, the Cuyahoga County Public Library is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio 
organized under the Ohio Revised Code and this Board is acting under relevant 
provisions of the Revised Code including 3375.40; and 

Whereas, The Board of trustees has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
Cuyahoga County Public Library System and the residents it serves to establish 
a comprehensive program for the construction of a new Library Facility in the City 
of Beachwood; and 

Whereas, this Board of Trustees has the authority to proceed with such projects and to 
contract for Construction Management at Risk Services for those projects set 
forth in the Request for Qualifications, the same being in accordance with 
Chapter 9.33 and other relevant provisions of the Ohio Revised Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE CUYAHOGA 
COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, STATE OF OHIO 

SECTION 1 

That the Chief Executive Officer, or designee, be and is hereby authorized to advertise 
for the proposals from professional Construction Management firms for Construction 
Management at Risk Services in accordance with the Request for Qualifications. 

SECTION 2   

That the Chief Executive Officer and Staff are hereby authorized to follow the 
procedures of the Ohio Revised Code for the selection of Construction Management at 
Risk Services in accordance with the provisions contained in the Ohio Revised Code, 
including but not limited to ORC 9.33; and in so doing to select and rank consultants to 
provide such Construction Management Services on the Beachwood Library Facility as 
set forth in the Request for Qualifications. 

SECTION 3   

It is found and determined that all formal actions of the Board of Trustees concerning 
and relating to this legislation were adopted in an open meeting of this Board and that all 
deliberations of this Board and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action 
were meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including 
relevant provisions of the Ohio Revised Code. 

51



SLN 
Resolution to Advertise 
RFQ CMAR Services 
02/28/2023 

2

Approved July 25, 2023 

________________________________ 
Dean E. DePiero, President 

________________________________ 
Maria L. Spangler, Secretary 

52



Cuyahoga County Public Library 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LIBRARY TO ACCEPT 
GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICING AND CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER AT RISK FEES RELATING TO THE NEW 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE BRANCH LIBRARY LOCATED IN 
THE CITY OF BROOKL YN 

Whereas, the Cuyahoga County Public Library (the "Library"} is a county library 
district and political subdivision of the State of Ohio organized under the 
Ohio Revised Code and this Board of Library Trustees (this "Board"} is 
body politic and corporate organized and acting under relevant provisions 
of the Ohio Revised Code, including sections 3375.22 and 3375.40 of the 
Ohio Revised Code; and 

Whereas, this Board previously approved entering into a contract with Panzica 
Construction Company for Construction Management at Risk Services; 
and 

Whereas, construction documents are complete and contractors have been solicited 
by Panzica Construction Company to construct the new Brooklyn Branch 
Library with a Guaranteed Maximum Price of $13,528.418.00; and 

Whereas, this Construction Manager At Risk Fees associated with the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price are $1,649,335.00; and 

Whereas, this Board has determined that it is in the interest of the Library to accept 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price and Construction Manager at Risk Fees 
and move forward on the project with a total combined cost of 
$15. 177,753.00. 

Now therefore be it resolved by the Cuyahoga County Public Library: 

Section 1. The Board of Trustees concurs with the result of negotiations 
by Panzica Construction Company for the Guaranteed Maximum Price of 
$13,528,418. 

Section 2. The Board of Trustees agrees with the Construction 
Manager At Risk Fees for Panzica Construction Company in the amount 
of $1,649,335.00. 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



BRV-Drive-Up 
Award of Contract-Seitz 
07/25/2023 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LIBRARY TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENT 
WITH SEITZ BUILDERS, INC. REGARDING THE BRECKSVILLE DRIVE-UP 

WINDOW PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Public Library is a county library district 
and political subdivision of the State of Ohio organized under the Ohio Revised 
Code and this Board is a body politic organized and acting pursuant to relevant 
provisions of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC), including Sections 3375.22 and 
3375.40 of the ORC; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees previously authorized the Library to 
advertise for bids for the Brecksville Drive-Up Window Project; and, 

WHEREAS, the Library did so advertise and received two (2) responses 
for the Drive-Up Window Project.  The Director of Facilities and Architect have 
reviewed each of the responses and determined the best, lowest, and responsive 
bid was submitted by Seitz Builders, Inc. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, STATE OF OHIO, THAT: 

Section 1 
The Board of Trustees concurs with the findings that based upon the bid 
documents submitted, Seitz Builders, Inc. is the best, lowest, and responsive 
bidder for the Brecksville Drive-Up Window Project. 

Section 2 
That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the selection of Seitz Builders, Inc. 
for the project and authorizes the Chief Executive Officer, or Designee, to 
execute the contract in the amount of Nine Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand 
Dollars ($947,000) for said project on behalf of the Library. 

Section 3 
It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and 
relating to this legislation were adopted in an open meeting of this Board and that 
all deliberations of this Board or any of its committees that resulted in this formal 
action were meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including relevant provisions of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC). 

133



BRV-Drive-Up 
Award of Contract-Seitz 
07/25/2023 

Approved July 25, 2023 

X 
Dean E. DePiero, President 

X 
Maria L. Spangler, Secretary 

134



FPR – Innovation Center 
Apex Construction 
Change Order No. One (deduct) 
07/25/2023 

Cuyahoga County Public Library 

Resolution to approve Change Order Number One 
for Apex Construction for Fairview Innovation Center Project 

WHEREAS   this Board did enter into an Agreement with Apex 
Construction for the Innovation Center Project at the 
Fairview Park Branch for the total contract amount of 
$224,900.00; and 

WHEREAS the Owner, Architect and Contractor have agreed to a 
deduct change order in the amount of $9,114.32 for the 
unused portion of the original contract total of $224,900.00, 
which will bring the current contract total to $215,785.68; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of 
Cuyahoga County Public Library does hereby approve deduct Change Order 
Number One for Apex Construction in the amount of ($9,114.32). 

Approved July 25, 2023 

__________________________ 
Dean E. DePiero, President 

___________________________ 
Maria L. Spangler, Secretary 

135



NOL Teen Expansion 
Sterling Professional Group 
Change Order No. One (deduct) 
07/25/2023 

Cuyahoga County Public Library 

Resolution to approve Change Order Number One 
for Sterling Professional Group for the North Olmsted Teen 

Expansion Project 

WHEREAS   this Board did enter into an Agreement with Sterling 
Professional Group for the Teen Expansion Project at the 
North Olmsted Branch for the total contract amount of 
$243,932.00; and 

WHEREAS the Owner, Architect and Contractor have agreed to a 
deduct change order in the amount of $2,255.34 for the 
unused portion of the original contract total of $243,932.00, 
which will bring the current contract total to $241,676.66; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of 
Cuyahoga County Public Library does hereby approve deduct Change Order 
Number One for Sterling Professional Group in the amount of ($2,255.34). 

Approved July 25, 2023 

__________________________ 
Dean E. DePiero, President 

___________________________ 
Maria L. Spangler, Secretary 

136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



PAH 
Resolution to Advertise 
RFQ CMAR Services 
07/25/2023 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
A RESOLUTION SEEKING PERMISSION TO ADVERTISE FOR A REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AT RISK SERVICES FOR 
THE NEW LIBRARY BRANCH IN THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS 

Whereas, the Cuyahoga County Public Library is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio 
organized under the Ohio Revised Code and this Board is acting under relevant 
provisions of the Revised Code including 3375.40; and 

Whereas, The Board of trustees has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
Cuyahoga County Public Library System and the residents it serves to establish 
a comprehensive program for the construction of a new Library Facility in the City 
of Parma Heights; and 

Whereas, this Board of Trustees has the authority to proceed with such projects and to 
contract for Construction Management at Risk Services for those projects set 
forth in the Request for Qualifications, the same being in accordance with 
Chapter 9.33 and other relevant provisions of the Ohio Revised Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE CUYAHOGA 
COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, STATE OF OHIO 

SECTION 1 

That the Chief Executive Officer, or designee, be and is hereby authorized to advertise 
for the proposals from professional Construction Management firms for Construction 
Management at Risk Services in accordance with the Request for Qualifications. 

SECTION 2   

That the Chief Executive Officer and Staff are hereby authorized to follow the 
procedures of the Ohio Revised Code for the selection of Construction Management at 
Risk Services in accordance with the provisions contained in the Ohio Revised Code, 
including but not limited to ORC 9.33; and in so doing to select and rank consultants to 
provide such Construction Management Services on the Param Heights Library Facility 
as set forth in the Request for Qualifications. 

SECTION 3   

It is found and determined that all formal actions of the Board of Trustees concerning 
and relating to this legislation were adopted in an open meeting of this Board and that all 
deliberations of this Board and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action 
were meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including 
relevant provisions of the Ohio Revised Code. 

172



PAH 
Resolution to Advertise 
RFQ CMAR Services 
07/25/2023 

2

Approved July 25, 2023 

________________________________ 
Dean E. DePiero, President 

________________________________ 
Maria L. Spangler, Secretary 

173


	7 JULY 2023 Board Book cover
	Agenda Board Meeting JULY 2023
	Board Meeting Minutes FINAL JUNE 27 2023
	Retirement Resolution Tracy Koziol
	Retirement Resolution Elizabeth Starcovic
	EXD Pages
	CEO Calendar JULY 2023
	EXD Pages
	7 July 2023 HRD Board Report
	June 2023 Narrative
	Financial Statements - June 2023
	23Jul PAL
	June 2023 Gifts - Board Book Gift Report -
	BCH Negotiate Design Services 072523
	BCH Resolution to Advertise RFQ CMAR  072523 (002)
	BKL - Panzica GMP Resolution-AIA 072523  002
	SLN - CMAR Award of Contract Infinity 072523
	BRV Drive UP Window Award of Contract Seitz Builders  072523
	FPR - Apex Innovation Center CO 1  072523
	NOL - Sterling Professional Group CO 1  072523
	PAH - Award of Contract-Bialosky Design 072523
	PAH Resolution to Advertise RFQ CMAR  072523 (002)



